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          1                      P-R-O-C-E-E-D-I-N-G-S

          2             THE DEPUTY CLERK:  CIVIL ACTION 98-1232, UNITED

          3   STATES OF AMERICA VERSUS MICROSOFT CORPORATION, AND 98-1233,

          4   STATE OF NEW YORK, ET AL. VERSUS MICROSOFT CORPORATION.

          5             PHILLIP MALONE, STEPHEN HOUCK AND DAVID BOIES FOR

          6   THE PLAINTIFFS.

          7             JOHN WARDEN, STEVEN HOLLEY, RICHARD UROWSKY AND

          8   WILLIAM NEUKOM FOR THE DEFENDANT.

          9             THE COURT:  FOR PLANNING PURPOSES, COUNSEL, AS

         10   MR. WARDEN HAS REQUESTED, I AM PREPARED TO HOLD COURT

         11   TOMORROW AND WE WILL BE IN SESSION TOMORROW.

         12             I HAVE A PRELIMINARY CALENDAR TOMORROW THAT I'LL

         13   HAVE TO COMPLETE, SO WE WILL START AT 11:00 TOMORROW

         14   MORNING.

         15             MR. BOIES:  THANK YOU, YOUR HONOR.

         16             THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.

         17             GOOD MORNING, MR. ROSE.

         18             THE WITNESS:  GOOD MORNING, YOUR HONOR.

         19             THE COURT:  YOU ARE, AS I'M SURE YOU KNOW, STILL

         20   UNDER OATH.

         21             THE WITNESS:  YES, YOUR HONOR.

         22             (JOHN ROSE, DEFENDANT'S WITNESS, PREVIOUSLY

         23   SWORN.)

         24                  CROSS-EXAMINATION (CONTINUED)

         25   BY MR. BOIES:
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          1   Q.  GOOD MORNING, MR. ROSE.

          2   A.  GOOD MORNING, MR. BOIES.

          3   Q.  YOU WOULD AGREE, WOULD YOU NOT, SIR, THAT COMPAQ'S

          4   RELATIONSHIP WITH MICROSOFT IS VERY IMPORTANT TO COMPAQ,

          5   COMMERCIALLY AND FINANCIALLY?

          6   A.  YES, I WOULD.

          7   Q.  AND YOU RECALL -- AND YOU MAY HAVE IT STILL IN FRONT OF

          8   YOU -- BUT DO YOU RECALL THAT THERE WAS AN E-MAIL THAT WE

          9   WENT OVER YESTERDAY IN WHICH SOMEBODY WAS SAYING THAT

         10   MICROSOFT WAS UNHAPPY WITH COMPAQ AND WAS STARTING TO WORK

         11   MORE CLOSELY WITH HEWLETT PACKARD AND DIGITAL EQUIPMENT

         12   CORPORATION.  DO YOU RECALL THAT E-MAIL?

         13   A.  COULD I SEE THAT?

         14   Q.  SURE.  ABSOLUTELY.

         15             THE COURT:  THIS IS GOVERNMENT'S 298 THAT YOU'RE

         16   REFERRING TO?

         17             MR. BOIES:  I BELIEVE SO, YOUR HONOR.  I'M JUST

         18   TRYING TO CHECK THE NUMBER MYSELF.

         19             THE WITNESS:  298?

         20   BY MR. BOIES:

         21   Q.  YES, 298.

         22   A.  I HAVE IT IN FRONT OF ME.

         23   Q.  THIS WAS THE SENTENCE -- AND WE TALKED ABOUT THIS

         24   YESTERDAY -- WHERE IN THE MIDDLE OF THE DOCUMENT THE AUTHOR

         25   WRITES, "MICROSOFT WAS UPSET WITH OUR ANNOUNCEMENT AND OUR
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          1   INTERNAL USE OF NETSCAPE AND INITIATED A NUMBER OF

          2   ACTIVITIES WITH DIGITAL EQUIPMENT CORPORATION AND HEWLETT

          3   PACKARD, REDUCING THEIR EMPHASIS ON THE COMPAQ PARTNERSHIP."

          4             DO YOU SEE THAT?

          5   A.  YES, I DO.

          6   Q.  AND IS IT FAIR TO SAY THAT IF MICROSOFT WERE TO TAKE

          7   SUCH ACTIONS, THAT WOULD BE A MATTER OF SIGNIFICANT CONCERN

          8   TO COMPAQ?

          9   A.  WELL, I'M NOT SURE WHAT ACTIONS THE AUTHOR MEANT

         10   SPECIFICALLY HERE.  AND MY UNDERSTANDING, THE UPSETNESS THAT

         11   MICROSOFT HAD AT THAT TIME, AS I EXPLAINED YESTERDAY IN MY

         12   TESTIMONY, WAS THE THRUST ON OUR PUBLIC DRIVE OR PARTNERSHIP

         13   WITH NETSCAPE PUSHING FORWARD ON THE INTERNET, WHICH IS

         14   AROUND INTRANET AND EXTRANET.

         15   Q.  MY QUESTION IS, WOULD IT BE A MATTER OF SIGNIFICANT

         16   CONCERN TO COMPAQ IF MICROSOFT WERE TO DE-EMPHASIZE ITS

         17   CLOSE RELATIONSHIP WITH COMPAQ AND INITIATE ACTIVITIES WITH

         18   DIGITAL EQUIPMENT CORPORATION AND HEWLETT PACKARD?

         19   A.  THAT'S A BIT DIFFICULT FOR ME TO SPECULATE ON.  I KNOW

         20   FROM EXPERIENCE THROUGH 17 YEARS THAT THAT'S NOT BEEN THE

         21   CASE -- THAT COMPAQ HAS HAD THE LEADERSHIP.  AND, IN

         22   PARTICULAR, IN THE SERVER MARKET, WE HAVE BEEN

         23   UNQUESTIONABLY THE LEADER AND CREATED THAT MARKET.

         24             SO THE REFERENCE HERE IS -- IN MY MIND, IS

         25   SPECULATION ON THE PART OF THE AUTHOR.  NOTHING DID OCCUR,
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          1   TO THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE, AND OUR BUSINESS CONTINUED TO

          2   FLOURISH.

          3   Q.  LET ME BE SURE I HAVE YOUR TESTIMONY.  ARE YOU

          4   TESTIFYING THAT THE AUTHOR HERE, WHERE THE AUTHOR STATES

          5   THAT MICROSOFT HAS DONE CERTAIN THINGS, WAS SIMPLY NOT

          6   WRITING SOMETHING THAT WAS ACCURATE?

          7   A.  I CAN'T TELL FROM THIS DOCUMENT, MR. BOIES, EXACTLY WHAT

          8   SPECIFIC THINGS.  THERE'S NO CLARITY IN HERE WHEN I LOOK AT

          9   SPECIFIC THINGS.  AND, AS I RECALL, IN THAT TIMEFRAME FROM

         10   MY OWN BUSINESS EXPERIENCE -- AND, IN PARTICULAR, THE

         11   REFERENCE HERE IS IN THE ENTERPRISE AREA -- THERE WERE --

         12   THERE WAS NO SPECIFIC IMPACT TO OUR BUSINESS OR SPECIFIC

         13   THINGS.

         14   Q.  LET ME TRY TO SEE IF I CAN APPROACH IT THIS WAY.

         15   A.  SURE.

         16   Q.  SOME OF YOUR RELATIONSHIPS WITH MICROSOFT ARE GOVERNED

         17   BY CONTRACTUAL PROVISIONS, CORRECT?

         18   A.  THEY ARE GOVERNED BY THE FRONT LINE PARTNERSHIP, WHICH

         19   IS BUSINESS STRUCTURED AS ITS PRIMARY FOCUS, AND THEN HAS

         20   WITHIN IT CERTAIN CONTRACTUAL PIECES TO IT, YES.

         21   Q.  I THINK I UNDERSTAND WHAT YOU'RE SAYING, BUT LET ME BE

         22   CLEAR.  YOU'RE SAYING THAT YOUR RELATIONSHIP WITH MICROSOFT

         23   IS IN PART BASED ON CONTRACT AND IN PART BASED ON SIMPLY

         24   COOPERATION; IS THAT FAIR?

         25   A.  YES.
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          1   Q.  OKAY.  NOW, TO THE EXTENT THAT MICROSOFT WERE TO REDUCE

          2   ITS COOPERATION WITH COMPAQ -- THAT IS, THEY WOULD CONTINUE

          3   TO FULFILL THEIR CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS, BUT IF THEY WERE

          4   TO REDUCE THEIR SPECIAL COOPERATION -- THE FRONT LINE

          5   COOPERATION WITH COMPAQ -- IS THAT SOMETHING THAT WOULD BE

          6   OF CONCERN TO COMPAQ?

          7   A.  IT WOULD CERTAINLY BE OF CONCERN IF ANY PARTNER DID

          8   THAT.  HOWEVER, THAT WOULD BE IN VIOLATION OF THE PRINCIPLES

          9   THAT WE SET FORTH IN THE FRONT LINE PARTNERSHIP.

         10   Q.  NOW, LET'S FOCUS A MINUTE ON THOSE PRINCIPLES.  THOSE

         11   PRINCIPLES OF THE FRONT LINE PARTNERSHIP ARE THAT COMPAQ AND

         12   MICROSOFT ARE SUPPOSED TO COOPERATE TOGETHER, CORRECT?

         13   A.  THAT'S PART OF IT.

         14   Q.  AND WITHOUT GOING INTO THE SPECIFIC FINANCIAL DEALS IN

         15   OPEN COURT, IS IT FAIR TO SAY THAT YOU UNDERSTAND THAT PART

         16   OF WHAT COMPAQ GETS IS A SIGNIFICANTLY LOWER PRICE FOR THE

         17   OPERATING SYSTEM THAN MICROSOFT CHARGES OTHER P.C.

         18   MANUFACTURERS?

         19   A.  YES.  BUT LET ME CLARIFY THAT BECAUSE, IN RETURN, COMPAQ

         20   IS PROVIDING A TREMENDOUS AMOUNT OF VALUE.  AND IF YOU'D

         21   LIKE, I WOULD IDENTIFY THAT VALUE.

         22   Q.  DO YOU THINK YOU COULD DO IT QUICKLY?

         23   A.  SURE.

         24   Q.  THAT WILL AFFECT WHETHER I WANT YOU TO DO IT OR NOT.

         25   A.  SURE.  ABSOLUTELY.
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          1   Q.  IF YOU COULD JUST SUMMARIZE IT.

          2   A.  I'LL SUMMARIZE IT IN ABOUT A HALF A DOZEN KEY POINTS.

          3   ONE, INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY, BECAUSE OF OUR PATENT PORTFOLIO,

          4   INCLUDING SOFTWARE PATENTS.

          5             SECOND, OUR MARKET MOMENTUM, OUR VOLUME

          6   LEADERSHIP.

          7             THIRD, OUR -- IN THE CASE OF ENGINEERING, I HAVE

          8   350 ENGINEERS IN REDMOND THAT FOCUS ON WORKING WITH

          9   MICROSOFT IN ENHANCING THE PRODUCT.

         10             FOURTH, I HAVE OVER 3,000 TRAINED NT

         11   SPECIALISTS -- WINDOWS NT -- IN OUR SERVICE ORGANIZATION.

         12   AND WE PUSH THE LARGEST AND MOST COMPREHENSIVE CUSTOMER

         13   SOLUTIONS, SUCH AS GLOBAL MAIL AND MESSAGING FOR CUSTOMERS,

         14   AROUND MICROSOFT PRODUCTS.

         15             SO THERE'S MORE VALUE, I BELIEVE -- AND HAVE -- AS

         16   WELL AS THE REST OF COMPAQ, THAN ANY OTHER MANUFACTURER IN

         17   THE INDUSTRY.

         18   Q.  THAT IS, YOU'RE CLOSER TO MICROSOFT, IN YOUR VIEW, THAN

         19   ANY OTHER P.C. MANUFACTURER IN THE INDUSTRY; IS THAT WHAT

         20   YOU'RE SAYING?

         21   A.  NO.  I WOULD SAY SPECIFICALLY THAT WE INVEST MORE THAN

         22   ANY OTHER MANUFACTURER IN THE INDUSTRY IN ADVANCING THIS

         23   OPEN-INDUSTRY STANDARD, IN PUTTING VALUE AROUND THE

         24   MICROSOFT PRODUCTS TO PROVIDE THE BEST SOLUTIONS FOR

         25   CUSTOMERS.
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          1   Q.  OKAY.  NOW, THIS FRONT LINE PARTNERSHIP THAT YOUR

          2   REFERRED TO SEVERAL TIMES -- UNDER THAT FRONT LINE

          3   PARTNERSHIP, YOU BELIEVE THAT BOTH YOU GET CERTAIN

          4   ADVANTAGES FROM MICROSOFT AND MICROSOFT GETS CERTAIN

          5   ADVANTAGES FROM COMPAQ, FAIR?

          6   A.  I VIEW IT MORE AS A RETURN OF VALUE FROM BOTH SIDES.

          7   Q.  BY RETURN OF VALUE --

          8   A.  VALUE FOR VALUE.

          9   Q.  VALUE FOR VALUE?

         10   A.  RIGHT.

         11   Q.  THAT'S REALLY WHAT I MEANT TO BE ASKING.  AND YOU

         12   BELIEVE THAT THAT FRONT LINE PARTNERSHIP AGREEMENT GIVES

         13   COMPAQ A DIFFERENT RELATIONSHIP WITH MICROSOFT THAN OTHER

         14   P.C. MANUFACTURERS, CORRECT, SIR?

         15   A.  YES.  BUT I ALSO BELIEVE THAT ANY OTHER P.C.

         16   MANUFACTURER THAT WANTS TO INVEST TO THE DEGREE THAT COMPAQ

         17   HAS INVESTED IN THOSE VALUE PROPOSITIONS THAT I

         18   CHARACTERIZED COULD DO THE SAME THING.

         19   Q.  WELL, SIR, ONE OF THE THINGS THAT YOU SAID THAT LED TO

         20   THIS RELATIONSHIP WAS THE FACT THAT YOU WERE MICROSOFT'S

         21   VOLUME LEADER.  DO YOU RECALL THAT?

         22   A.  YES.  WE'RE ALSO THE VOLUME LEADER FOR EVERY OTHER

         23   PARTNER IN THE INDUSTRY.

         24   Q.  WELL, SIR, YOU SAY YOU'RE THE VOLUME LEADER FOR EVERY

         25   OTHER PARTNER IN THE INDUSTRY.  LET'S TEST THAT A LITTLE
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          1   BIT.

          2   A.  SURE.

          3   Q.  WHAT ARE YOUR OTHER PARTNERS IN THE INDUSTRY?

          4   A.  THIS CONTEXT OF THE FRONT LINE PARTNERSHIP WE USE AS THE

          5   SAME VEHICLE WITH OTHER PARTNERS.  LET ME JUST HIGHLIGHT

          6   THOSE.

          7   Q.  ALL I AM ASKING IS WHAT THEY ARE.

          8   A.  OKAY.  SURE.  THOSE WOULD BE NOVELL, SANTA CRUZ, UNIX,

          9   SAP, BAAN, ORACLE, SIEBEL --

         10   Q.  HOW DO YOU SPELL THAT?

         11   A.  S-I-E-B-E-L.  PEOPLESOFT.  AND THE LIST GOES ON.

         12   Q.  WELL, IF THERE ARE PARTNERS THAT ARE OF EQUIVALENT

         13   IMPORTANCE, I'D LIKE YOU TO TELL ME.  IF YOU'VE GIVEN ME THE

         14   MOST IMPORTANT ONES, I DON'T NEED TO GET THE ENTIRE LIST.

         15   A.  I'VE GIVEN YOU THE MOST IMPORTANT ONES IN THE SET THAT

         16   WE VIEW AS STRATEGIC PARTNERS IN THAT SAME CLASS AS

         17   MICROSOFT.

         18   Q.  NOW, I NOTICED THAT AOL WAS NOT ON THIS LIST.  IS AOL A

         19   STRATEGIC PARTNER OF YOURS?

         20   A.  AOL IS A PARTNER.  I DON'T KNOW YET THAT THEY ARE A

         21   STRATEGIC PARTNER.  PARTNERS MOVE IN TIME BECAUSE SIMPLY WE

         22   HAVE THOUSANDS OF PARTNERS.  AND THEN THERE'S A TOP SET OF

         23   PARTNERS THAT WE CALL THE "STRATEGIC."  THAT IS A DYNAMIC

         24   LIST THAT GROWS.  SO AOL COULD BE.

         25   Q.  OKAY.  IS BEOS A STRATEGIC PARTNER?
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          1   A.  NO.

          2   Q.  ARE THEY A PARTNER?

          3   A.  I AM UNAWARE THAT WE HAVE ANY PARTNERSHIP AGREEMENT WITH

          4   BEOS.

          5   Q.  OF THE STRATEGIC PARTNERS THAT YOU'VE IDENTIFIED, DO

          6   SOME OF THEM PROVIDE PRODUCTS THAT ARE USED IN YOUR AREA AND

          7   SOME PROVIDE PRODUCTS THAT ARE USED IN OTHER AREAS OF

          8   COMPAQ?

          9   A.  YES.

         10   Q.  THAT IS, YOUR AREA -- YOUR PRESENT AREA IS THE

         11   ENTERPRISE BUSINESS, CORRECT?

         12   A.  THAT IS CORRECT.

         13   Q.  AND OF THE PARTNERS THAT YOU IDENTIFIED, SOME OF THE

         14   PARTNERS, LIKE MICROSOFT, PROVIDE PRODUCTS THAT ARE USED

         15   BOTH IN THE ENTERPRISE SIDE AND IN THE PERSONAL COMPUTER

         16   SIDE, CORRECT?

         17   A.  THAT IS CORRECT.

         18   Q.  AND SOME OF THEM WILL PROVIDE PRODUCTS THAT ARE USED

         19   ONLY IN ONE SIDE OR THE OTHER; IS THAT FAIR?

         20   A.  THAT IS FAIR, HOWEVER, THE LIST THAT I GAVE YOU

         21   TRANSCENDS PRETTY MUCH BOTH SIDES.

         22   Q.  THAT'S WHAT I WANT TO GO OVER WITH YOU -- WHETHER THE

         23   LIST YOU GAVE ME ARE PARTNERS THAT PROVIDE PRODUCTS FOR BOTH

         24   THE PERSONAL COMPUTER SIDE AND THE ENTERPRISE SIDE, OKAY?

         25   A.  YES.
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          1   Q.  AND I WOULD LIKE TO JUST GO DOWN THAT LIST AND JUST HAVE

          2   YOU TELL ME WHETHER IT'S BOTH OR, IF IT'S ONLY ONE SIDE,

          3   WHICH SIDE, OKAY?

          4   A.  SURE.

          5   Q.  NOVELL?

          6   A.  NOVELL IS BOTH.

          7   Q.  SANTA CRUZ?

          8   A.  SANTA CRUZ IS BOTH.

          9   Q.  SAP?

         10   A.  SAP IS BOTH.

         11   Q.  BAAN?

         12   A.  BAAN IS BOTH.

         13   Q.  ORACLE?

         14   A.  ORACLE IS BOTH.

         15   Q.  SIEBEL?

         16   A.  SIEBEL IS BOTH.

         17   Q.  AND PEOPLESOFT?

         18   A.  PEOPLESOFT IS BOTH.

         19   Q.  WHAT PRODUCT DOES SANTA CRUZ PROVIDE ON A STRATEGIC

         20   PARTNERSHIP BASIS FOR THE PERSONAL COMPUTER SIDE OF THE

         21   BUSINESS?

         22   A.  ACTUALLY, MR. BOIES, WHAT WE'RE PROVIDING WITH THESE

         23   PARTNERS IS A COMPLETE SOLUTION FOR OUR BUSINESS CUSTOMERS.

         24   SO WHEN I SAY "BOTH," IT MEANS THAT WE ARE SELLING A SIEBEL

         25   SOLUTION, OR A PEOPLESOFT SOLUTION, OR A SANTA-CRUZ-BASED
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          1   SOLUTION THAT INCLUDES THE DESKTOPS, THE PORTABLES AND THE

          2   SERVERS.

          3             IT'S NOT, YOU KNOW, ONE BOX VERSUS THE OTHER.  SO

          4   THAT'S WHAT I MEAN BY MY TERMINOLOGY OF "BOTH."

          5   Q.  ALL I ASKED WAS WITH RESPECT TO SANTA CRUZ --

          6   A.  YES.

          7   Q.  -- WHAT PRODUCT DOES SANTA CRUZ PROVIDE YOU THAT YOU

          8   INCLUDE IN YOUR PERSONAL COMPUTER SIDE OF THE BUSINESS?

          9   A.  WE PROVIDE A COMPLETE SOLUTION WITH SANTA CRUZ THAT

         10   INCLUDES THE CLIENT P.C.'S AND THE SERVER P.C.

         11   Q.  ALL I AM ASKING, SIR -- MAYBE MY QUESTION IS NOT CLEAR.

         12   BUT YOU SAID THAT THERE WAS AN ENTERPRISE SIDE OF THE

         13   BUSINESS AND A PERSONAL COMPUTER SIDE OF THE BUSINESS, AND

         14   YOU ARE NOW IN CHARGE OF THE ENTERPRISE SIDE OF THE

         15   BUSINESS, AND YOU USED TO BE INVOLVED IN THE PERSONAL

         16   COMPUTER SIDE OF THE BUSINESS, CORRECT?

         17   A.  THAT IS CORRECT, BUT YOU AND I ARE USING DIFFERENT

         18   TERMINOLOGY.  THE TERMINOLOGY THAT I USE AND WHAT WE USE

         19   WITH OUR CUSTOMERS IS WE SELL COMPLETE SOLUTIONS THAT

         20   INCLUDE THE DESKTOP.  WE DON'T JUST SEPARATELY SELL -- WE DO

         21   IN SOME CASES FOR SOME CUSTOMERS SELL PRODUCTS SEPARATELY,

         22   BUT WE SELL COMPLETE SOLUTIONS, WHICH INCLUDE THE DESKTOP,

         23   THE PORTABLE, THE SERVER AND THE SERVICE AND OUR PARTNERS'

         24   SOFTWARE WITH THAT.

         25   Q.  NOW, ACCEPTING THAT YOU SELL COMPLETE SOLUTIONS, WHICH
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          1   YOU'VE SAID A NUMBER OF TIMES --

          2   A.  YES.

          3   Q.  -- MY QUESTION IS NOT THAT.  MY QUESTION IS WHAT SANTA

          4   CRUZ PRODUCT DO YOU INCLUDE IN YOUR PERSONAL COMPUTERS?

          5   A.  WE INCLUDE -- WE DON'T INCLUDE IT IN THE PERSONAL

          6   DESKTOP ITSELF.  WE INCLUDE IT IN THE SERVER AND INCLUDE IN

          7   THAT SOLUTION, WITH THE SANTA CRUZ SERVER SOFTWARE, A

          8   COMPLETE SOLUTION, INCLUDING THE PORTABLES AND THE DESKTOPS.

          9   Q.  LET ME SEE IF I UNDERSTAND WHAT YOU'RE SAYING.  THE

         10   SANTA CRUZ PRODUCT IS IN THE SERVER PRODUCT THAT COMPAQ

         11   MARKETS; IS THAT WHAT YOU'RE SAYING?

         12   A.  YES.

         13   Q.  AND YOU WILL SOMETIMES MARKET SERVERS AND PERSONAL

         14   COMPUTERS TOGETHER AS PART OF A TOTAL SOLUTION FOR A

         15   CUSTOMER; IS THAT WHAT YOU'RE SAYING?

         16   A.  WE PUT TOGETHER A TOTAL SOLUTION, YES, THAT WE PACKAGE,

         17   CERTIFY, TEST AND PRESENT TO THE MARKET AROUND SANTA CRUZ.

         18   Q.  BUT THERE ISN'T ANY SANTA CRUZ PRODUCT IN THE PERSONAL

         19   COMPUTER; IS THAT CORRECT?

         20   A.  THERE IS NOT A SEPARATE SANTA CRUZ PRODUCT IN THE

         21   DESKTOP, AS AN EXAMPLE.

         22   Q.  AND BY "DESKTOP," DO YOU MEAN TODAY WHAT YOU MEANT BY

         23   "PERSONAL COMPUTER" YESTERDAY?

         24   A.  THAT WAS A FORM FACTOR THAT I DESCRIBED YESTERDAY IN THE

         25   PERSONAL-COMPUTER GROUP, YES.
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          1   Q.  AND BY "FORM FACTOR," DO YOU MEAN THE SAME PRODUCT?

          2   A.  YOU'VE LOST ME.  IF YOU COULD REPEAT YOUR QUESTION,

          3   PLEASE.

          4   Q.  YESTERDAY WHEN WE WERE TALKING ABOUT COMPAQ'S

          5   BUSINESS --

          6   A.  YES.

          7   Q.  -- YOU TALKED ABOUT TWO GROUPS THAT MARKETED PERSONAL

          8   COMPUTERS.  DO YOU RECALL THAT?

          9   A.  YES.

         10   Q.  OKAY.  NOW, WHEN YOU REFER TO A DESKTOP, WHICH YOU HAVE

         11   SEVERAL TIMES IN RESPONSE TO MY QUESTIONS ABOUT PERSONAL

         12   COMPUTERS --

         13   A.  YES.

         14   Q.  -- DO YOU MEAN TO USE THE TERM "DESKTOP" THE SAME WAY

         15   YOU WERE USING THE TERM "PERSONAL COMPUTER" YESTERDAY?

         16   A.  IT'S NOT AS BLACK AND WHITE BECAUSE, AS I SAID

         17   YESTERDAY, THERE IS DESKTOP FORM FACTORS INSTANTIATED IN

         18   THINGS LIKE WORKSTATIONS, WHICH IS A DESKTOP.

         19   Q.  I ALMOST HESITATE TO ASK THIS, BUT COULD YOU DESCRIBE,

         20   AS BRIEFLY AS YOU CAN, WHAT YOU MEAN BY THE WORD "FORM

         21   FACTOR"?

         22   A.  AS I SAID YESTERDAY, THE PHYSICAL FORM FACTOR OF THE

         23   DEVICE ITSELF.  SO IN THE CASE IN THE COURT HERE, THESE

         24   WOULD BE DESKTOP DEVICES VERSUS PORTABLE.  NOW, THAT DESKTOP

         25   DEVICE COULD BE A WORKSTATION.  IT COULD BE A DESKTOP
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          1   PERSONAL COMPUTER.

          2   Q.  AND BY "FORM FACTOR," YOU JUST MEAN THE PRODUCT; IS THAT

          3   RIGHT?

          4   A.  YES, THE PHYSICAL FORM FACTOR OR THE PRODUCT.

          5   Q.  THE PHYSICAL PRODUCT?

          6   A.  YES.

          7   Q.  OKAY.  AND PERSONAL COMPUTERS COME IN BOTH DESKTOP FORMS

          8   AND PORTABLE FORMS?

          9   A.  THAT IS CORRECT.

         10   Q.  OKAY.  NOW IN EITHER THE DESKTOP FORM OR THE PORTABLE

         11   FORM, DO YOU INCLUDE SANTA CRUZ PRODUCTS IN YOUR PERSONAL

         12   COMPUTERS?

         13   A.  WE DON'T LOAD THEM THERE.  HOWEVER, OUR DESKTOPS CAN BE

         14   USED AND ARE USED AS A NON-DEDICATED SERVER AND, THEREFORE,

         15   RUNNING THE SANTA CRUZ SOFTWARE, OR THEY CAN BE RUNNING THE

         16   NOVELL SOFTWARE.

         17             SO THAT'S WHY MY POINT TO YOU, MR. BOIES, IT'S NOT

         18   AS BLACK AND WHITE, THAT ONLY ONE FORM FACTOR DOES ONE THING

         19   AND THE OTHER FORM FACTOR DOES THE OTHER THING.  THERE IS

         20   SOME GRAYNESS HERE AND REALLY THE GRAYNESS IS HOW THE

         21   CUSTOMER WANTS TO USE THE PRODUCT.

         22   Q.  WHAT PERCENTAGE OF COMPAQ'S BUSINESS CONSISTS OF WHAT

         23   YOU HAVE REFERRED TO AS SERVERS?

         24   A.  PERCENTAGE IN VOLUME?  PERCENTAGE IN REVENUE?

         25   Q.  REVENUE.
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          1   A.  IN REVENUE?  IN THE SERVER AND REVENUE CLASS, IT'S

          2   PROBABLY OVER 50 PERCENT OF THE REVENUE OF THE COMPANY.  SO

          3   I WOULD EXPECT THIS YEAR, LOOKING AT THE STREET ESTIMATES,

          4   IT'S IN EXCESS OF 23 BILLION.

          5   Q.  AND WHAT PERCENTAGE OF COMPAQ'S REVENUE IS DERIVED FROM

          6   PERSONAL COMPUTERS?

          7   A.  I WOULD EXPECT THE PERSONAL COMPUTER SIDE IS ABOUT 20

          8   BILLION.  SLIGHTLY OVER HALF WOULD BE -- OF THE REVENUE OF

          9   THE COMPANY WOULD BE ENTERPRISE.

         10   Q.  WHEN YOU JOINED COMPAQ IN 1993, HAD THE FIVE-YEAR

         11   CONTRACT THAT YOU REFERRED TO YESTERDAY ALREADY BEEN SIGNED?

         12   A.  YES, SIR.  AS I SAID, IT WAS SIGNED IN 1992.

         13   Q.  IT WAS SIGNED IN 1992?

         14   A.  THE FRONT LINE PARTNERSHIP BEGAN 1992.

         15   Q.  WHEN WAS THE CONTRACT SIGNED, SIR?

         16   A.  THE LEGAL DOCUMENT ITSELF?

         17   Q.  THE CONTRACT THAT HAS --

         18   A.  I'M NOT SURE OF THAT, MR. BOIES.  THE SPAN OF THE FRONT

         19   LINE PARTNERSHIP RAN FROM 1992, I BELIEVE, TO ITS EXPIRATION

         20   DATE IN MARCH OF 1998, AND THEN WE STRUCTURED A NEW

         21   AGREEMENT.

         22   Q.  LET ME JUST TRY SOME ARITHMETIC.

         23   A.  SURE.

         24   Q.  YOU'VE SAID SEVERAL TIMES IT WAS A FIVE-YEAR AGREEMENT,

         25   RIGHT?
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          1   A.  YES.

          2   Q.  OKAY.  THE AGREEMENT EXPIRED IN 1998, DID IT?

          3   A.  YES.

          4   Q.  OKAY.  NOW, FIVE YEARS FROM 1998 IS 1993, RIGHT?

          5   A.  THAT'S CORRECT.

          6   Q.  NOW, DOES THAT SUGGEST TO YOU THAT IT WAS SIGNED IN

          7   1993?

          8   A.  SINCE IT PRECEDED MY EMPLOYMENT AT COMPAQ, I DID NOT GO

          9   BACK AND CHECK THE RECORDS TO SEE EXACTLY WHEN THE SIGNATURE

         10   DATE WAS.  SO I AM UNAWARE OF THE SIGNATURE DATE.

         11   Q.  AND YOU'VE NEVER CHECKED THAT?

         12   A.  NO, I HAVEN'T HAD A NEED TO GO BACK AND CHECK THAT.

         13   Q.  DID YOU EVER DISCUSS WITH ANY OF THE PEOPLE INVOLVED

         14   WITH THAT NEGOTIATION WHAT THE CIRCUMSTANCES OF THAT

         15   NEGOTIATION WERE?

         16   A.  WHAT DO YOU MEAN BY "CIRCUMSTANCES"?

         17   Q.  WHAT HAPPENED IN THE NEGOTIATION, WHAT COMPAQ WAS

         18   CONCERNED ABOUT IN THE NEGOTIATION, WHAT COMPAQ SAID IN THE

         19   NEGOTIATION, WHAT MICROSOFT SAID IN THE NEGOTIATION, HOW

         20   THEY NEGOTIATED, AND HOW THEY ARRIVED AT THE CONTRACT THEY

         21   ARRIVED AT.  THINGS LIKE THAT.

         22   A.  NO.  I HAVE NOT.

         23   Q.  LET ME ASK YOU TO LOOK AT GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT 433.  THIS

         24   IS A DOCUMENT THAT HAS ALREADY BEEN ADMITTED INTO EVIDENCE

         25   UNDER SEAL.  AND I WANT TO ASK YOU SOME QUESTIONS ABOUT IT.
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          1   AND IF WE NEED TO GO INTO THE SUBSTANCE OF THE DOCUMENT THAT

          2   IS OF CONFIDENTIALITY CONCERNS TO COMPAQ, WE WILL HAVE TO DO

          3   THAT IN A CLOSED SESSION, BUT I WANT TO SEE HOW FAR WE CAN

          4   GET IN OPEN SESSION.

          5   A.  OKAY.  AND THIS IS THE DOCUMENT THAT PRECEDES MY

          6   EMPLOYMENT AT COMPAQ.

          7   Q.  YES.

          8   A.  OKAY.

          9   Q.  IT'S A DOCUMENT THAT'S MORE THAN SIX YEARS OLD.

         10   A.  OKAY.  GREAT.

         11   Q.  SO THE CONFIDENTIALITY CONCERNS AT THIS POINT MAY BE A

         12   LITTLE BIT ATTENUATED, BUT IF THERE IS A CONFIDENTIALITY

         13   CONCERN -- AND YOUR COUNSEL IS FOLLOWING ALONG WITH THIS --

         14   WE'RE GOING TO GO PAGE BY PAGE.

         15   A.  GREAT.

         16   Q.  AND IF THERE IS A PROBLEM, WE WILL GO INTO CLOSED

         17   SESSION.

         18             FIRST, HAVE YOU SEEN THIS DOCUMENT BEFORE?

         19   A.  I HAVE SEEN THIS DOCUMENT IN MY DEPOSITION.

         20   Q.  AND HAVE YOU DISCUSSED THIS DOCUMENT WITH ANYONE IN

         21   PREPARATION EITHER FOR YOUR DEPOSITION OR YOUR TESTIMONY?

         22   A.  I HAVE ONLY DISCUSSED THIS DOCUMENT WITH MY LEGAL TEAM.

         23   Q.  BUT YOU HAVE DISCUSSED IT WITH YOUR LEGAL TEAM?

         24   A.  YES, I HAVE.

         25   Q.  IN PREPARATION FOR THIS TESTIMONY?
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          1   A.  YES, IN PREPARATION FOR THE TRIAL.

          2   Q.  DID YOU ALSO DISCUSS IT WITH YOUR LEGAL TEAM IN

          3   PREPARATION FOR YOUR DEPOSITION?

          4   A.  NO.  I HAD NOT SEEN THE DOCUMENT UNTIL THE GOVERNMENT

          5   PRESENTED IT TO ME DURING MY DEPOSITION.

          6   Q.  NOW, I AM GOING TO GO THROUGH AND ASK, NOT SURPRISINGLY,

          7   SOME OF THE SAME QUESTIONS WE ASKED AT THE DEPOSITION.  AND

          8   THIS IS A DOCUMENT THAT WAS PREPARED WITHIN COMPAQ IN

          9   PREPARATION FOR A MEETING WITH MICROSOFT IN EARLY 1993,

         10   CORRECT?

         11   A.  IT WAS PREPARED BY COMPAQ IN JANUARY OF '93.  I DON'T

         12   KNOW IF THE PURPOSE WAS FOR, YOU KNOW, THE MEETING OR AN

         13   INTERNAL REVIEW, WHICH NORMALLY WE DO BEFORE THE MEETING.

         14   SO IT GOES THROUGH A SUBSEQUENT SET OF INTERNAL REVIEWS.

         15   WHETHER THIS WAS THE MEETING DOCUMENT, I DON'T KNOW,

         16   MR. BOIES.

         17   Q.  THIS IS HEADED "MICROSOFT MEETING PREPARATION," CORRECT,

         18   SIR?

         19   A.  THAT IS CORRECT.

         20   Q.  AND YOU DON'T HAVE ANY REASON TO DOUBT THAT THAT'S

         21   ACCURATE, DO YOU?

         22   A.  NO.  I JUST DON'T KNOW WHAT "REV" IT MAY HAVE BEEN IN

         23   THAT PROCESS.

         24   Q.  NOW, THIS IS A SERIES OF SLIDES, AND LET ME ASK YOU TO

         25   TURN TO SLIDE 8.
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          1             MR. BOIES:  AND I WOULD ASK AS A PRELIMINARY

          2   MATTER WHETHER COUNSEL FOR COMPAQ HAS A PROBLEM WITH USING

          3   IT.

          4             MR. COSTON:  YOU CAN PUT IT UP.

          5   BY MR. BOIES:

          6   Q.  AND THIS SAYS "JUDGMENT:  HOW RETALIATORY WOULD THEY

          7   GET?"  AND THIS REFERS TO POSSIBLE RETALIATION BY MICROSOFT,

          8   CORRECT, SIR?

          9   A.  I WOULD EXPECT THAT'S WHAT THE REFERENCE IS HERE.

         10   Q.  OKAY.  AND THERE ARE A LIST OF POSSIBLE RETALIATORY

         11   ACTIONS THAT MICROSOFT MIGHT TAKE HERE, CORRECT, SIR?

         12   A.  THERE'S A SET OF BULLETS HERE.

         13   Q.  AND THE SET OF BULLETS IS A SET OF BULLETS UNDER THE

         14   HEADING THAT ASKS HOW RETALIATORY WOULD MICROSOFT GET,

         15   CORRECT?

         16   A.  YES, HOW RETALIATORY WOULD THEY GET.

         17   Q.  AND THE "THEY" THERE IS MICROSOFT?

         18   A.  I WOULD IMPLY THAT THE "THEY" THERE IS MICROSOFT.

         19   Q.  OKAY.  AND ONE OF THEM SAYS "PRICING ADVANTAGE."  DO YOU

         20   SEE THAT?

         21   A.  I DO.

         22   Q.  AND IS YOUR UNDERSTANDING THAT PRICING ADVANTAGE THERE

         23   RELATES TO THE RELATIVE PRICES THAT ARE CHARGED COMPAQ AS

         24   COMPARED TO OTHER P.C. MANUFACTURERS FOR MICROSOFT'S

         25   OPERATING SYSTEMS?
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          1   A.  THAT COULD BE, YES.

          2   Q.  IS THAT THE WAY YOU GENERALLY UNDERSTAND IT IN THIS

          3   CONTEXT?

          4   A.  I'M NOT SURE SPECIFICALLY FROM THIS DOCUMENT WHAT IS

          5   MEANT BY THE AUTHOR WITH RESPECT TO PRICING ADVANTAGE -- IF

          6   THAT'S A COMPAQ PRICING ADVANTAGE OR IF IT'S A COMPAQ

          7   DISADVANTAGE.  IT'S DIFFICULT FOR ME TO TELL WHAT THE AUTHOR

          8   WAS LOOKING AT HERE.

          9   Q.  WOULD YOU AGREE THAT THE ADVANTAGE OR THE DISADVANTAGE

         10   IS AN ADVANTAGE OR DISADVANTAGE WITH RESPECT TO THE PRICES

         11   COMPAQ PAYS FOR MICROSOFT OPERATING SYSTEM SOFTWARE COMPARED

         12   TO OTHER P.C. MANUFACTURERS?

         13   A.  YES, I WOULD.

         14   Q.  OKAY.

         15             THE SECOND BULLET ITEM HERE IS "REVENUE FROM

         16   UPDATES."  CAN YOU EXPLAIN WHAT THAT MEANS?

         17   A.  THAT WOULD BE THE UPDATE VERSION FROM ONE RELEASE TO THE

         18   NEXT RELEASE, I WOULD EXPECT, AS CUSTOMERS UPDATE.

         19   Q.  THE THIRD BULLET ITEM IS "ACCESS TO EARLY SDK'S."  DO

         20   YOU SEE THAT?

         21   A.  YES, I DO.

         22   Q.  AND CAN YOU EXPLAIN WHAT THAT IS?

         23   A.  COMPAQ ALWAYS PARTICIPATES IN THE EARLY DEVELOPMENT

         24   PROCESS WITH ALL OF OUR PARTNERS.  SO THE SDK IS A SOFTWARE

         25   DEVELOPER'S KIT THAT, DURING THE DEVELOPMENT PROCESS,
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          1   PRECEDES THE FINAL KIT.

          2   Q.  AND IS IT IMPORTANT TO COMPAQ TO GET EARLY ACCESS TO

          3   THOSE SDK'S?

          4   A.  YES.

          5   Q.  THE NEXT ITEM SAYS "FIELD SALES ACTIVITIES (MICROSOFT

          6   HAS APPROXIMATELY 900 FIELD SALES PEOPLE.)"  DO YOU SEE

          7   THAT?

          8   A.  YES.

          9   Q.  I TAKE IT THE NUMBER OF FIELD SALES PEOPLE THAT

         10   MICROSOFT HAS TODAY IS LARGER THAN THAT?

         11   A.  I WOULD EXPECT IT IS.

         12   Q.  THE NEXT BULLET ITEM HERE IS "SUPPORT AND TRAINING."  DO

         13   YOU SEE THAT?

         14   A.  YES.

         15   Q.  AND WHAT DOES THAT RELATE TO?

         16   A.  THAT'S -- I WOULD EXPECT THAT THAT'S PRODUCT SUPPORT AND

         17   TRAINING OF THE SUPPORT PERSONNEL AND THE FIELD PERSONNEL

         18   AROUND THE PRODUCTS.

         19   Q.  IS IT IMPORTANT TO COMPAQ TO GET SUPPORT AND TRAINING

         20   FROM MICROSOFT?

         21   A.  YES.  FROM ALL OUR PARTNERS.

         22   Q.  THE NEXT ITEM SAYS "INCLUSION IN ADVERTISING."  CAN YOU

         23   EXPLAIN WHAT THAT MEANS?

         24   A.  WE DO A LOT OF JOINT ADVERTISING WITH OUR PARTNERS THAT

         25   REFLECT THE SOLUTION TO THE CUSTOMER.  THAT INCLUDES, IN
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          1   THIS CASE, THE COMPAQ PRODUCTS, AND I WOULD EXPECT THE

          2   MICROSOFT PRODUCTS.

          3   Q.  THE NEXT ITEM SAYS "TONE TOWARD COMPAQ IN PRESS AND WITH

          4   CUSTOMERS."

          5             IS THERE ANYTHING YOU CAN ADD TO THAT THAT'S NOT

          6   SELF-EXPLANATORY?

          7   A.  NO.

          8   Q.  THE NEXT ITEM SAYS "SELECTION AND ELEVATION OF OTHER

          9   OEM'S AS LEADERS."

         10             CAN YOU EXPLAIN WHAT THAT MEANS?

         11   A.  I'M NOT SURE WHAT THE AUTHOR MEANT THERE BY THAT TERM.

         12   Q.  NOW, WHERE THE AUTHOR TALKS ABOUT OTHER OEM'S, THE

         13   AUTHOR IS TALKING ABOUT OTHER P.C. MANUFACTURERS, CORRECT?

         14   A.  RIGHT.

         15   Q.  AND THE AUTHOR IS TALKING ABOUT MICROSOFT'S SELECTION

         16   AND ELEVATION OF OTHER P.C. MANUFACTURERS AS LEADERS,

         17   CORRECT?

         18   A.  I'M NOT SURE WHAT THEY MEAN BY "ELEVATION."

         19   Q.  ACCEPTING THAT YOU DON'T KNOW WHAT THE AUTHOR MEANT BY

         20   "ELEVATION" --

         21   A.  RIGHT.

         22   Q.  -- THE AUTHOR IS CLEARLY SAYING HERE THAT ONE OF THE

         23   POSSIBLE RETALIATORY ACTIONS WOULD BE MICROSOFT'S SELECTION

         24   AND "ELEVATION," WHATEVER THAT WORD MEANS --

         25   A.  RIGHT.

                                                                              26

          1   Q.  -- OF OTHER P.C. MANUFACTURERS AS LEADERS, CORRECT, SIR?

          2   A.  SURE.

          3   Q.  AND THAT WOULD BE IN COMPARISON TO WHAT MICROSOFT WAS

          4   DOING WITH COMPAQ; WOULD THAT BE FAIR?

          5   A.  I WOULD -- I CAN'T TELL FROM THAT, MR. BOIES.

          6   Q.  OKAY.  THE NEXT ITEM SAYS "MAKE INTEGRATION RELATIONS

          7   EVEN MORE STRAINED THAN THEY ARE TODAY."  DO YOU KNOW WHAT

          8   THAT REFERS TO?

          9   A.  NO, I DON'T.  AT THAT TIME I WAS NOT AWARE OF THE

         10   RELATIONSHIPS AND HOW THEY EXISTED.

         11   Q.  THE NEXT ITEM SAYS "ACCESS TO SOURCE CODE, MODIFICATION

         12   OWNERSHIP."

         13             CAN YOU EXPLAIN WHAT THAT MEANS?

         14   A.  THAT WOULD BE -- IN SOME CASES, WE DO SOME ADAPTATION,

         15   AS WE DO TODAY, WITH THE MICROSOFT CODE IN AREAS SUCH AS

         16   MANAGEMENT.

         17   Q.  AND IS IT IMPORTANT TO COMPAQ THAT THEY HAVE THAT ACCESS

         18   AND THE RIGHT TO DO THAT?

         19   A.  SURE.

         20   Q.  AND THE NEXT ONE SAYS "MICROSOFT DIRECTIONAL INFORMATION

         21   AND PLANS."

         22             CAN YOU EXPLAIN WHAT THAT MEANS?

         23   A.  I'M NOT SURE WHAT THAT ONE MEANS, MR. BOIES.

         24   Q.  AND THE LAST ITEM SAYS "CUSTOMERS."

         25             AND DO YOU HAVE ANY UNDERSTANDING AS TO WHAT THE
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          1   AUTHOR WAS TALKING ABOUT IN TERMS OF WHAT KIND OF POSSIBLE

          2   RETALIATION THERE MIGHT BE WITH CUSTOMERS?

          3   A.  NO, I DON'T.

          4   Q.  LET ME ASK YOU TO GO BACK TO SLIDE 6.

          5             MR. COSTON:  NO OBJECTION, YOUR HONOR.

          6             THE COURT:  VERY WELL.

          7   BY MR. BOIES:

          8   Q.  THIS SLIDE IS HEADED "POTENTIAL REACTIONS TO GO PDA

          9   DECISION."

         10             DO YOU SEE THAT?

         11   A.  YES.

         12   Q.  DO YOU KNOW WHAT IS BEING REFERRED TO THERE?

         13   A.  I DON'T KNOW WHAT THE DECISION IS THAT IS BEING REFERRED

         14   TO.  I DO KNOW WHAT THE REFERENCE OF "GO" "AND" PDA ARE.

         15   Q.  LET'S BEGIN WITH THAT.  WHAT IS THE REFERENCE TO "GO"

         16   AND "PDA"?

         17   A.  THE REFERENCE TO "GO" IS "GO" WAS A COMPANY THAT WAS

         18   DEVELOPING A SOFTWARE FOR HAND-HELD DEVICES, AND "PDA" IS,

         19   AT THE TIME, THE REFERENCE TERM OF OUR EVALUATING A DEVICE

         20   IN THAT CLASS.

         21   Q.  I UNDERSTAND THIS HAPPENED BEFORE YOU GOT THERE --

         22   A.  YES, IT DID.

         23   Q.  -- BUT DID YOU LEARN, AFTER YOU GOT THERE, THAT THERE

         24   HAD BEEN A TIME IN 1992 OR 1993 WHEN COMPAQ HAD BEEN

         25   EVALUATING "GO" SOFTWARE?
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          1   A.  I WAS AWARE THAT COMPAQ WAS EVALUATING THIS NEW CATEGORY

          2   OF DEVICE, AND WITHIN THAT EVALUATION, "GO" WAS ONE OF THE

          3   ALTERNATIVES.

          4   Q.  AND WAS THERE A MICROSOFT ALTERNATIVE?

          5   A.  YES, I BELIEVE THERE WAS DEVELOPING A MICROSOFT

          6   ALTERNATIVE.

          7   Q.  AND DID COMPAQ ULTIMATELY AGREE TO MAKE MICROSOFT THE

          8   EXCLUSIVE SUPPLIER OF OPERATING SYSTEM SOFTWARE FOR COMPAQ'S

          9   HAND-HELD COMPUTER PRODUCTS?

         10   A.  YES.  BUT LET ME ADD SOMETHING THERE, IF I COULD.  THE

         11   KEY CRITICAL ISSUE IN THIS AREA FROM A CUSTOMER PERSPECTIVE

         12   WAS THE NEED TO HAVE INTEGRATED AND INTEROPERABILITY BETWEEN

         13   YOUR HAND-HELD DEVICE -- YOUR PORTABLE DEVICE -- AND YOUR

         14   DESKTOP DEVICE.

         15   Q.  LET ME BE SURE I UNDERSTAND WHAT YOU'RE SAYING.  YOU'RE

         16   SAYING THAT COMPAQ CHOSE MICROSOFT AS ITS EXCLUSIVE OS

         17   SUPPLIER FOR HAND-HELD COMPUTER PRODUCTS BECAUSE IT WAS

         18   IMPORTANT TO HAVE INTEROPERABILITY BETWEEN THE HAND-HELD

         19   COMPUTER PRODUCTS AND P.C.'S AND OTHER PRODUCTS?

         20   A.  YES.  THE KEY FEEDBACK THAT WE WERE GETTING FROM

         21   CUSTOMERS IS -- AND WE STILL GET IT TODAY -- IS HAVING THAT

         22   SEAMLESS INTEROPERABILITY BETWEEN THE DIFFERENT DEVICES AND

         23   YOUR PREDOMINANT DEVICE THAT YOU USE AT WORK, WHICH IS A

         24   PORTABLE OR A DESKTOP.

         25   Q.  NOW, THE DECISION TO MAKE COMPAQ -- OR COMPAQ'S DECISION
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          1   TO MAKE MICROSOFT COMPAQ'S EXCLUSIVE SUPPLIER OF OPERATING

          2   SYSTEM SOFTWARE FOR COMPAQ'S HAND-HELD COMPUTER PRODUCTS WAS

          3   MADE IN APRIL 1993, CORRECT, SIR?

          4   A.  I'M NOT SURE.

          5   Q.  JUST FOR PURPOSES OF REFRESHING YOUR RECOLLECTION, LET

          6   ME SHOW YOU GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT 993.  IT'S ALREADY IN

          7   EVIDENCE.

          8   A.  THANK YOU.

          9   Q.  AND DOES THIS REFRESH YOUR RECOLLECTION THAT COMPAQ MADE

         10   THE DECISION TO SELECT MICROSOFT AS COMPAQ'S EXCLUSIVE

         11   SUPPLIER OF OPERATING SYSTEM SOFTWARE FOR COMPAQ'S HAND-HELD

         12   COMPUTER PRODUCTS IN ABOUT APRIL OF 1993?

         13   A.  THIS LETTER REFLECTS THAT, YES.

         14   Q.  NOW, WAS THIS THE SAME TIME THAT CONTRACTS FOR P.C.

         15   OPERATING SYSTEM SOFTWARE SUPPLY WERE BEING SIGNED BY COMPAQ

         16   AND MICROSOFT?

         17   A.  WELL, I'M NOT SURE.  IT WAS IN THE SAME PERIOD IN WHICH

         18   THEY WERE BEING NEGOTIATED, BUT AS I SAID PREVIOUSLY IN MY

         19   TESTIMONY, I DON'T KNOW EXACTLY WHEN THAT WAS SIGNED.

         20   Q.  OKAY.  WAS THERE A RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN THE FIVE-YEAR

         21   P.C. OPERATING SYSTEM SUPPLY CONTRACT THAT MICROSOFT GAVE

         22   COMPAQ IN 1993 AND COMPAQ'S SELECTION OF MICROSOFT AS

         23   COMPAQ'S EXCLUSIVE SUPPLIER OF OPERATING SYSTEM SOFTWARE FOR

         24   HAND-HELD COMPUTER PRODUCTS?

         25   A.  I CAN'T TELL YOU IF THERE WAS.  THIS IS, AS I SAID, A
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          1   NEW CATEGORY.  IT WAS A CATEGORY THAT DID NOT EXIST.  IT WAS

          2   A CATEGORY THAT WAS BEING CREATED.  SO I CAN'T TELL WHAT THE

          3   LINKAGE IS FROM LOOKING AT THESE DOCUMENTS AT THAT TIME.

          4   Q.  ALL RIGHT.  LET ME GO TO ANOTHER SUBJECT.

          5             AND, IN THAT CONNECTION, I WOULD ASK YOU TO LOOK

          6   AT GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT 758, WHICH IS A DOCUMENT THAT HAS BEEN

          7   FILED UNDER SEAL.

          8             MR. BOIES:  GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT 758 IS IN EVIDENCE,

          9   AND I HAVE CHECKED WITH COUNSEL FOR COMPAQ, AND THEY HAVE NO

         10   OBJECTION TO MY USING PAGES 83 AND 84, WHICH ARE THE PAGES

         11   THAT I WOULD LIKE TO USE WITH THE WITNESS.

         12   BY MR. BOIES:

         13   Q.  AND I WOULD DIRECT YOUR ATTENTION, MR. ROSE, TO PAGES 83

         14   AND 84 OF THIS DOCUMENT.  AND WHEN YOU'VE HAD AN OPPORTUNITY

         15   TO LOOK AT THAT IN CONTEXT, PLEASE LET ME KNOW.

         16   A.  YES.

         17   Q.  THIS IS AN E-MAIL DATED NOVEMBER 12, 1996 FROM BOB

         18   FRIEDMAN TO STEVE FLANNIGAN WITH COPIES TO OTHER PEOPLE.

         19   WHO IS MR. FRIEDMAN, IF YOU KNOW?

         20   A.  I DON'T KNOW SPECIFICALLY WHO MR. FRIEDMAN IS.  I

         21   BELIEVE HE MAY HAVE BEEN A PERSON IN THE SAN BRUNO CONSUMER

         22   TEAM.

         23   Q.  WHAT WAS MR. FLANNIGAN'S POSITION AT THIS TIME?

         24   A.  MR. FLANNIGAN AT THAT TIME WAS VICE-PRESIDENT, STRATEGIC

         25   RELATIONS, REPORTING TO ME, RESPONSIBLE FOR SOME OF OUR
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          1   MAJOR STRATEGIC RELATIONS, INCLUDING MICROSOFT.

          2   Q.  THIS ALSO GOES TO STEVE GOLDBERG.  DO YOU KNOW WHO HE

          3   IS?

          4   A.  STEVE GOLDBERG AT THE TIME -- AT THAT TIME WORKED FOR

          5   MR. FLANNIGAN.

          6   Q.  IT ALSO GOES TO DAVID GOLLOB.  AND DO YOU KNOW WHO HE

          7   IS?

          8   A.  NO, I DON'T.

          9   Q.  AND IT ALSO GOES TO STEVE DECKER.  AND DO YOU KNOW WHAT

         10   HIS POSITION WAS THEN?

         11   A.  HE WAS DIRECTOR OF PURCHASING IN THE PURCHASING

         12   DEPARTMENT.

         13   Q.  DOES THE PURCHASING DEPARTMENT SERVE BOTH THE ENTERPRISE

         14   SIDE AND THE PERSONAL COMPUTER SIDE?

         15   A.  YES, IT SERVES ALL ASPECTS OF THE COMPANY.  CORPORATE

         16   PURCHASING FUNCTION.

         17   Q.  NOW, MR. FRIEDMAN WRITES HERE THAT "JOE WILLIAMS CAME TO

         18   SAN BRUNO LAST WEEK TO MEET WITH DAVID GOLLOB AND MYSELF TO

         19   DISCUSS REVENUE SHARING FROM THE MICROSOFT ISP AGREEMENTS."

         20             DO YOU SEE THAT?

         21   A.  YES.

         22   Q.  DO YOU KNOW WHO JOE WILLIAMS IS?

         23   A.  I BELIEVE JOE WILLIAMS IS A MICROSOFT -- OR WAS AT THAT

         24   TIME A MICROSOFT OEM PERSON.

         25   Q.  AND THE NEXT LINE SAYS, "WHY IS MICROSOFT MAKING THE
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          1   OFFER?"  AND THEN THERE ARE THREE POSSIBLE REASONS HEADED A,

          2   B AND C.  DO YOU SEE THAT?

          3   A.  YES.

          4   Q.  REASON A IS "MICROSOFT IS UNHAPPY WITH THE NETSCAPE ICON

          5   ON THE NA PREDATORS DESKTOPS AND WANTS TO GET IT OFF."

          6             DO YOU SEE THAT?

          7   A.  YES.

          8   Q.  FIRST, WHAT IS MEANT BY THE "NA PREDATORS DESKTOPS"?

          9   A.  I BELIEVE THAT TO BE A CODE NAME, WHICH MEANS NORTH

         10   AMERICA.  PREDATORS HAPPENED TO BE A NAME OF A PARTICULAR

         11   MODEL WITHIN THE PRODUCT SET OF THE PRESARIO.  AND THE

         12   DEVELOPMENT GROUPS MAKE UP FUNNY NAMES.  SO THAT'S WHAT THAT

         13   ONE IS.

         14   Q.  THIS IS ONE OF THE INTERNAL CODE NAMES?

         15   A.  INTERNAL CODE NAMES.  THANK YOU.

         16   Q.  WERE YOU AWARE, IN OR ABOUT NOVEMBER 1996, THAT

         17   MICROSOFT WAS UNHAPPY WITH NETSCAPE'S PLAN TO INCLUDE AN

         18   ICON ON THE COMPAQ PERSONAL COMPUTER DESKTOPS -- THE

         19   PRESARIO DESKTOPS THAT ARE REFERRED TO HERE?

         20   A.  I WAS UNAWARE THAT MICROSOFT WAS UNHAPPY WITH THAT.  I

         21   WAS AWARE THAT AOL WAS UNHAPPY.

         22   Q.  NOW, THE REFERENCE HERE IS TO MICROSOFT BEING UNHAPPY

         23   WITH IT, CORRECT, SIR?

         24   A.  YES.

         25   Q.  AND IT'S YOUR TESTIMONY THAT YOU WERE NOT AWARE OF THAT?
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          1   A.  THAT'S CORRECT.

          2   Q.  REASON C THAT'S HERE SAYS, "COMPAQ HAS BEEN ADAMANT OF

          3   WANTING TO EARN REVENUES FROM ISP AGREEMENTS.  MICROSOFT'S

          4   STANCE TO DATE RAISES QUESTIONS OF IMPROPER USE OF A

          5   MONOPOLY POSITION.  MAKING THIS OFFER COULD REDUCE

          6   MICROSOFT'S EXPOSURE."

          7             DO YOU SEE THAT?

          8   A.  YES.

          9   Q.  DO YOU KNOW WHAT IS BEING REFERRED TO THERE?

         10   A.  I'M NOT SURE WHAT MR. FRIEDMAN IS REFERRING TO AS FAR

         11   AS -- THIS WAS A NEW CATEGORY.  AS I SAID IN MY TESTIMONY

         12   YESTERDAY, PICKING UP RESIDUAL REVENUE STREAMS IN AGREEMENT

         13   WITH ISP PROVIDERS WAS A NEW AREA THAT WE WERE WORKING IN.

         14   AND THAT'S HOW WE EVOLVED INTO THE AOL AGREEMENT.  BUT I'M

         15   NOT SURE OF SPECIFICALLY WHAT MR. FRIEDMAN MEANS HERE.

         16   Q.  OKAY.  LET ME GO OVER TO THE SECOND PAGE, AND UNDER THE

         17   HEADING THAT SAYS "FINE PRINT AND LAND MINES" UP AT THE

         18   TOP --

         19   A.  YES.

         20   Q.  -- AND PARTICULARLY POINT A, WHERE IT SAYS, "MICROSOFT

         21   WILL BE EXPECTING AN EXCLUSIVE ARRANGEMENT THAT WOULD

         22   PREVENT US FROM PUTTING NETSCAPE ON THE DESKTOP."

         23   A.  YES.  I SEE THAT.

         24   Q.  WERE YOU EVER TOLD -- AND I REALIZE THAT THIS RELATES TO

         25   THE PERSONAL COMPUTER SIDE AND YOU WERE NOW IN THE
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          1   ENTERPRISE SIDE.  BUT, AT THIS TIME, YOU HAD

          2   RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE STRATEGIC RELATIONSHIP WITH

          3   MICROSOFT, CORRECT?

          4   A.  THAT IS CORRECT.

          5   Q.  SO THAT EVEN THOUGH THIS WAS SOMETHING THAT RELATED TO

          6   PRODUCTS OUTSIDE YOUR DIRECT RESPONSIBILITY, YOU WOULD HAVE

          7   HAD SOME INTEREST IN THE SUBJECT MATTER BECAUSE OF YOUR

          8   RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE STRATEGIC RELATIONSHIP WITH

          9   MICROSOFT?

         10   A.  THAT IS CORRECT.

         11   Q.  WERE YOU AWARE, IN OR ABOUT NOVEMBER OF 1996, THAT

         12   MICROSOFT EITHER WANTED OR WAS EXPECTING AN EXCLUSIVE

         13   ARRANGEMENT THAT WOULD PREVENT COMPAQ FROM PUTTING NETSCAPE

         14   ON THE DESKTOP?

         15   A.  I WAS NEVER AWARE OF MICROSOFT WANTING US TO EXCLUDE THE

         16   NETSCAPE ICON FROM THE DESKTOP.

         17   Q.  IN 1996, WAS NETSCAPE A PARTNER, AS YOU HAVE USED THOSE

         18   TERMS?

         19   A.  YES.

         20   Q.  AND IN 1996, DID COMPAQ HAVE A PARTNERSHIP RELATIONSHIP

         21   WITH NETSCAPE THAT LED COMPAQ TO WANT TO GIVE TO NETSCAPE

         22   THE POSITION AS THE BROWSER THAT WAS FEATURED ON THE

         23   PRESARIO DESKTOP?

         24   A.  COULD YOU REPEAT YOUR QUESTION, MR. BOIES, PLEASE?

         25   Q.  SURE.  SURE.  THERE CAME A TIME IN EARLY 1996 WHEN
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          1   COMPAQ MADE A DECISION TO REMOVE THE INTERNET EXPLORER ICON

          2   FROM THE PRESARIO DESKTOP, CORRECT?

          3   A.  NO, THAT'S NOT CORRECT.  COMPAQ NEVER REMOVED THE

          4   INTERNET EXPLORER OR MSN ICON FROM THE DESKTOP.  WHAT WE DID

          5   WAS WE FAILED TO COMPLY WITH THE OPK RULES THAT WE HAD

          6   AGREED TO.

          7             SO WE NEVER PUT THE ICON FOR THE INTERNET EXPLORER

          8   OR MSN ON -- DISPLAYED ON THE PRESARIO SCREEN AS AN ICON.

          9   SO WE DIDN'T REMOVE IT.  WE JUST NEVER PUT IT UP THERE.

         10   Q.  ALL RIGHT.  LET ME BE SURE THAT I UNDERSTAND WHAT YOU'RE

         11   SAYING.  IN 1996, COMPAQ MADE A DECISION NOT TO PUT THE

         12   INTERNET EXPLORER ICON ON THE PRESARIO DESKTOP, CORRECT?

         13   A.  I DON'T KNOW IF THAT WAS AN OVERT DECISION, AS I SAID

         14   YESTERDAY.  THE CORPORATE STRATEGY, THE DIRECTION, THE

         15   AGREED-TO PLAN FOR THE COMPANY WAS TO FOLLOW THE OPK RULES,

         16   AND THAT WAS DOCUMENTED IN AN AGREEMENT.

         17             AND WHEN THE IMPLEMENTATION GROUP PUT TOGETHER THE

         18   NEW WAVE OF CONSUMER PRODUCTS BEGINNING IN JANUARY FOR THE

         19   NEW RETAIL BUYING SEASON, THEY FAILED TO IMPLEMENT AND PUT

         20   THE ICONS FOR BOTH MSN AND INTERNET EXPLORER UP AS THE OPK

         21   DEFINED IT.

         22   Q.  WHEN YOU SAY YOU DON'T KNOW WHETHER IT WAS AN OVERT

         23   DECISION, DO YOU MEAN YOU DON'T KNOW WHETHER THAT WAS A

         24   CORPORATE DECISION?

         25   A.  THAT WAS NOT A CORPORATE DECISION.
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          1   Q.  SOMEBODY WHO WAS RESPONSIBLE FOR THE PRESARIO COMPUTERS

          2   MADE A DECISION NOT TO INCLUDE THE INTERNET EXPLORER ICON ON

          3   THE DESKTOP, CORRECT?

          4   A.  THAT IS CORRECT.

          5   Q.  OKAY.

          6   A.  AND THAT WAS INCONSISTENT WITH THE CORPORATE STRATEGY --

          7   Q.  NOW --

          8   A.  -- AND OUR CONTRACTUAL AGREEMENT WITH MICROSOFT.

          9   Q.  I UNDERSTAND YOUR TESTIMONY ON THAT AND I WILL PROBABLY

         10   COME BACK TO IT, BUT WHAT I'M NOW TRYING TO DO IS JUST GET

         11   OUR TERMINOLOGY STRAIGHT.

         12   A.  YES.

         13   Q.  AND YOU WERE DRAWING A DISTINCTION BETWEEN NOT PUTTING

         14   THE ICON ON THE DESKTOP AND REMOVING THE ICON FROM THE

         15   DESKTOP, CORRECT?

         16   A.  YES.  YOU USED THE WORD "REMOVAL."  IN MY TERMINOLOGY,

         17   SINCE IT NEVER WAS UP THERE, YOU COULD NOT REMOVE IT.  NOW,

         18   MAYBE I'M, YOU KNOW, TRYING TO BE A LITTLE ENGINEERING

         19   PRECISE HERE, BUT IF IT WAS NEVER THERE, HOW CAN YOU REMOVE

         20   IT?  WE FAILED TO PUT IT THERE.

         21   Q.  WELL, THE PEOPLE IN COMPAQ WHO WERE RESPONSIBLE FOR THE

         22   DECISION, IN YOUR LANGUAGE, NOT TO PUT THE ICON THERE,

         23   DESCRIBED IT THEMSELVES AS REMOVING THE ICON; DID THEY NOT,

         24   SIR?

         25   A.  IT'S DESCRIBED HERE AS REMOVING THE ICON.  HOWEVER, I
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          1   DON'T KNOW IF THESE ARE THE PEOPLE THAT WERE RESPONSIBLE AND

          2   SHOULD HAVE PUT THE ICON ON THERE TO BEGIN WITH OR IT'S

          3   SOMEONE ELSE IN THE GROUP.  I CAN'T TELL WHO SPECIFICALLY

          4   HAD THE RESPONSIBILITY FOR BUILDING THE KIT AND HAVING THE

          5   ICONS THERE IN COMPLIANCE WITH OUR AGREEMENT AND OUR LEGAL

          6   CONTRACT WITH MICROSOFT.

          7   Q.  LET ME GO TO THE DEPOSITIONS OF THE PEOPLE THAT I THINK

          8   YOU WILL AGREE WERE RESPONSIBLE.  ONE OF THOSE PEOPLE WOULD

          9   BE CELESTE DUNN, CORRECT?

         10   A.  YES.  ULTIMATELY CELESTE WAS RESPONSIBLE FOR THE

         11   SOFTWARE, AS I SAID YESTERDAY.

         12   Q.  AND I WOULDN'T GO TO THIS DEPOSITION IF THE ONLY POINT

         13   OF IT WAS THE DIFFERENCE BETWEEN REMOVING AN ICON AND NOT

         14   PUTTING IT ON, BUT THIS ALSO RELATES TO ANOTHER SUBJECT I

         15   WANT TO COVER IN THIS CONNECTION.

         16             SO IF YOU WOULD LOOK AT PAGES 75 AND 76 OF CELESTE

         17   DUNN'S DEPOSITION, WHICH I THINK YOU HAVE FROM YESTERDAY.

         18   A.  I MAY HAVE IT HERE, MR. BOIES.  YES, I DO.  WHICH PAGE?

         19   Q.  75, 76 AND CONTINUING.  AND THE PORTION I'M GOING TO

         20   PARTICULARLY BEGIN TO FOCUS ON IS AT LINE 16 OF PAGE 76

         21   WHERE QUESTIONS ARE BEING ASKED CONCERNING MIKE HEIL'S

         22   POSITION.

         23             AND AT LINES 11 THROUGH 14, MR. HEIL IS IDENTIFIED

         24   AS THE GENERAL MANAGER AND THE WITNESS TESTIFIES THAT, AS

         25   GENERAL MANAGER, MR. HEIL ALWAYS HAD THE FINAL DECISIONS IN
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          1   ANYTHING THAT WOULD BE DONE.  DO YOU SEE THAT?

          2   A.  PAGE 75?

          3   Q.  PAGE 76.

          4   A.  PAGE 76.

          5   Q.  AND STARTING AT LINES 11 THROUGH 14.

          6   A.  YES.

          7   Q.  AND THERE THE WITNESS IS SAYING THAT MR. HEIL, AS

          8   GENERAL MANAGER, ALWAYS HAD THE FINAL DECISIONS IN ANYTHING

          9   THAT WOULD BE DONE.  DO YOU SEE THAT?

         10   A.  YES.

         11   Q.  AND WOULD YOU AGREE WITH MS. DUNN IN THIS RESPECT?

         12   A.  YES.

         13   Q.  NOW, CONTINUING ON TO THE BOTTOM OF THE PAGE, LINES 16

         14   THROUGH 25:

         15             "QUESTION:  WAS MR. HEIL SUPPORTIVE OF THE

         16   ULTIMATE DECISION TO REMOVE THE ICONS?

         17             "ANSWER:  YES.

         18             "QUESTION:  NOW, YOU TESTIFIED THAT

         19   REPRESENTATIVES OF MICROSOFT WERE INFORMED OF COMPAQ'S PLANS

         20   TO REMOVE THE ICONS BEFORE THEY WERE ACTUALLY REMOVED.  IS

         21   THAT RIGHT?  I DON'T WANT TO MISCHARACTERIZE YOUR TESTIMONY.

         22             "ANSWER:  YES.

         23             "QUESTION:  WHO AT MICROSOFT WAS INFORMED?"

         24             AND THEN CONTINUING ON PAGE 77.

         25             "ANSWER:  IN THE OEM GROUP, DON HARDWICK AND SOME
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          1   OF HIS PEOPLE ON HIS TEAM.  AND THEN WE ALSO HAD INVOLVED

          2   VARIOUS PEOPLE IN THE TECHNICAL ORGANIZATION UNDER JOACHIM

          3   KEMPIN THAT WERE COUNTERPART TO MY ENGINEERING TEAM."

          4             AND LET ME STOP THERE.

          5   A.  YES.

          6   Q.  DO YOU HAVE ANY REASON TO DOUBT THE ACCURACY OF WHAT

          7   MS. DUNN TESTIFIES TO HERE?

          8   A.  NO.  I HAVE NO REASON TO DOUBT MS. DUNN'S DEPOSITION

          9   TESTIMONY.

         10   Q.  LET ME GO DOWN TO LINES 18 THROUGH 25 ON PAGE 77.

         11             "QUESTION:  AT THE TIME COMPAQ INFORMED MICROSOFT

         12   THAT IT WAS INTENDING TO REMOVE THE ICONS, DID ANYONE FROM

         13   MICROSOFT INDICATE THAT THE REMOVAL OF THE ICONS WOULD

         14   VIOLATE AN EXPLICIT AGREEMENT WITH RESPECT TO MSN?

         15             "ANSWER:  NO.

         16             "QUESTION:  DID ANYONE FROM MICROSOFT INDICATE

         17   THAT IT WOULD VIOLATE AN IMPLICIT AGREEMENT THAT

         18   REPRESENTATIVES FROM COMPAQ REACHED WITH MICROSOFT IN THE

         19   SUMMER OF 1995 NOT TO REMOVE MSN?

         20             "ANSWER:  NO."

         21             NOW, LET ME STOP THERE.  DO YOU HAVE ANY REASON TO

         22   DOUBT MS. DUNN'S TESTIMONY IN THIS RESPECT?

         23   A.  NO.  I HAVE NO REASON TO DOUBT MS. DUNN'S TESTIMONY

         24   ANYWHERE HERE.  IT'S HER TESTIMONY.

         25   Q.  DO YOU HAVE ANY REASON TO DOUBT THE ACCURACY OF THAT
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          1   TESTIMONY?

          2   A.  NO.  I DON'T.

          3   Q.  THEN AT LINE 4, PAGE 78.

          4             "QUESTION:  BEFORE SHIPPING WINDOWS WITH THE MSN

          5   AND INTERNET EXPLORER ICONS REMOVED, DID COMPAQ CONDUCT

          6   TESTING TO MAKE SURE IT WOULD FUNCTION PROPERLY?

          7             "ANSWER:  YES.

          8             "QUESTION:  WHO WAS INVOLVED IN THAT TESTING?

          9             "HARDWARE AND SOFTWARE ENGINEERS IN THE CONSUMER

         10   DIVISION.  AND WE WERE ALSO PART OF A CERTIFICATION WITH

         11   MICROSOFT.  WE SENT THEM COPIES OF OUR SOFTWARE THAT WERE

         12   TESTED ON SITE TO MAKE SURE THEY MET THE CRITERIA.

         13             "QUESTION:  HOW LONG BEFORE THE ICONS WERE REMOVED

         14   AND ACTUALLY SHIPPED WAS THIS TESTING CONDUCTED?

         15             "ANSWER:  IT WAS CONDUCTED THROUGHOUT DEVELOPMENT

         16   ON A WEEKLY BASIS, AS WELL AS, YOU KNOW, INTENSELY THE LAST

         17   90 DAYS OR 60 DAYS BEFORE YOU SHIP.

         18             "WHERE WAS TESTING CONDUCTED?

         19             "ANSWER:  THE COMPAQ TESTING WAS CONDUCTED IN

         20   CALIFORNIA AND IN HOUSTON, TEXAS.

         21             "QUESTION:  DID THE REMOVAL OF THE ICONS AFFECT

         22   THE FUNCTIONING OF THE OPERATING SYSTEM IN ANY WAY?

         23             "ANSWER:  NO."

         24             AND, AGAIN, IS IT THE CASE THAT YOU HAVE NO REASON

         25   TO DOUBT THE ACCURACY OF THIS TESTIMONY?
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          1   A.  THAT IS CORRECT.  THAT IS MS. DUNN'S TESTIMONY.

          2   Q.  YES.  THAT IS HER TESTIMONY.  I KNOW THAT YOU AGREE THAT

          3   SHE TESTIFIED TO THIS.

          4   A.  YES.

          5   Q.  MY QUESTION TO YOU IS WHETHER OR NOT YOU HAVE ANY REASON

          6   TO DOUBT THAT WHAT SHE TESTIFIES TO ACTUALLY IS THE FACT?

          7   A.  I HAVE NO DOUBT TO WHAT SHE TESTIFIED TO --

          8   Q.  OKAY.

          9   A.  -- AS BEING HER INTERPRETATIONS OF THE FACTS AT THAT

         10   TIME.  SHE WAS CLOSER.

         11   Q.  OKAY.  NOW, WHAT I JUST WANT TO BE SURE OF IS -- I KNOW

         12   THAT YOU'RE SAYING THAT SHE SAID THIS.

         13   A.  YES.

         14   Q.  AND I KNOW THAT YOU'RE --

         15   A.  SURELY.

         16   Q.  -- SAYING THAT SHE'S A HONEST PERSON.

         17   A.  YES.

         18   Q.  AND WHATEVER SHE SAID, SHE BELIEVED.

         19   A.  YES.

         20   Q.  OKAY.  NOW, I'M GOING TO ASK ANOTHER QUESTION.

         21   A.  YES.  PLEASE DO.

         22   Q.  AND THAT QUESTION IS, DO YOU HAVE ANY REASON TO BELIEVE

         23   THAT WHAT SHE TESTIFIES TO HERE IS INACCURATE IN ANY

         24   RESPECT?

         25   A.  I HAVE NO REASON TO BELIEVE THAT WHAT SHE TESTIFIED HERE
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          1   IS INACCURATE.

          2   Q.  OKAY.  NOW, LET ME ASK YOU TO LOOK AT A DEPOSITION IN

          3   OCTOBER 1997 -- OCTOBER 17, 1997 -- OF MR. STEPHEN DECKER.

          4             THE COURT:  BEFORE WE DO THAT, LET'S TAKE A BRIEF

          5   MID-MORNING RECESS.

          6             MR. BOIES:  THANK YOU, YOUR HONOR.

          7             (RECESS WAS TAKEN.)

          8             (AFTER RECESS.)

          9             THE COURT:  MR. PEPPERMAN.

         10             MR. PEPPERMAN:  YOUR HONOR, MAY I INQUIRE OF

         11   MR. BOIES WHETHER THIS IS THE OCTOBER 17, 1997 DEPOSITION OF

         12   MR. DECKER?

         13             MR. BOIES:  IT IS AND A COPY SHOULD HAVE BEEN

         14   GIVEN TO YOU.

         15             MR. PEPPERMAN:  OKAY.  I WOULD LIKE TO MAKE AN

         16   OBJECTION AT THIS TIME, YOUR HONOR, THAT DEPOSITION WAS

         17   CONDUCTED EX PARTE DURING THE GOVERNMENT'S INVESTIGATION

         18   LEADING UP TO THE CONSENT DECREE PROCEEDING.  MICROSOFT

         19   ATTORNEYS WERE NOT PRESENT AT THE DEPOSITION, NOR DID THEY

         20   HAVE A RIGHT TO CROSS-EXAMINE MR. DECKER.

         21             MR. DECKER WAS, HOWEVER, DEPOSED IN THIS ACTION,

         22   THE DISCOVERY LEADING UP TO THIS LITIGATION, ON OCTOBER 14,

         23   1998, A DEPOSITION AT WHICH WE DID HAVE A RIGHT TO ATTEND

         24   AND HAD A RIGHT TO CROSS-EXAMINE MR. DECKER.

         25             I'D ASK THAT IF MR. BOIES IS GOING TO USE THE
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          1   DEPOSITION OF MR. DECKER, HE USE THE ONE TAKEN IN THIS

          2   LITIGATION.

          3             MR. BOIES:  YOUR HONOR, THE OCTOBER 17, 1997

          4   DEPOSITION WAS TAKEN UNDER OATH.  I PLAN TO SHOW IT TO HIM,

          5   AS I WOULD ANY OTHER STATEMENT BY MR. DECKER, AND ASK HIM

          6   WHETHER HE AGREES WITH IT.  IF IT HAD BEEN A DOCUMENT

          7   WRITTEN AT A TIME THAT NO LAWYER WAS PRESENT, I COULD DO

          8   THAT AND COUNSEL FOR MICROSOFT HAS DONE THAT.

          9             ALL I AM DOING, IN TERMS OF CROSS-EXAMINING THE

         10   WITNESS, IS I INTEND TO PUT IN FRONT OF THE WITNESS

         11   MATERIALS THAT MR. DECKER UNQUESTIONABLY SAID -- AND IN THIS

         12   CASE SAID UNDER OATH -- AND ASK THE WITNESS WHETHER HE HAS

         13   ANY BASIS TO DISAGREE WITH IT OR NOT.

         14             MR. PEPPERMAN:  YOUR HONOR, I PROPOSE A COMPROMISE

         15   TO SORT OF MOVE THIS ALONG.  I WILL WITHDRAW MY OBJECTION TO

         16   MR. BOIES' USE OF THE OCTOBER 17, 1997 DEPOSITION, IF AT THE

         17   CONCLUSION OF THAT, HE WOULD LET ME READ TWO QUESTIONS AND

         18   ANSWERS INTO THE RECORD DURING MY CROSS-EXAMINATION OF

         19   MR. DECKER IN OCTOBER OF 1998 FOR THE SAKE OF COMPLETENESS

         20   UNDER RULE 106.  I CAN SHOW MR. BOIES THOSE QUESTIONS RIGHT

         21   NOW.

         22             THE COURT:  WHY CAN'T YOU TREAT THAT DURING YOUR

         23   REDIRECT EXAMINATION?

         24             MR. PEPPERMAN: IF THE COURT WOULD PREFER I DO

         25   THAT, I WILL.
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          1             THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.  LET'S DO IT THAT WAY,

          2   UNLESS IT IS REALLY A MATTER OF COMPLETENESS.

          3             (COUNSEL CONFERRING.)

          4             MR. BOIES:  I AM GOING TO USE THE SECOND

          5   DEPOSITION ANYWAY.  AND WHEN I DO, IF YOU WILL GIVE ME THAT,

          6   I WILL READ THIS.

          7             THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.  LET'S GET STARTED.

          8             MR. BOIES:  ALL RIGHT.

          9   BY MR. BOIES:

         10   Q.  FIRST, LET'S IDENTIFY WHO MR. DECKER IS.

         11   A.  IS THAT A QUESTION FOR ME, MR. BOIES?

         12   Q.  YES.  I AM SORRY.

         13   A.  AS I SAID EARLIER TODAY IN MY TESTIMONY, MR. DECKER IS,

         14   I BELIEVE, A DIRECTOR OF PURCHASING IN THE CORPORATE

         15   PURCHASING GROUP.

         16             THE COURT:  OF COMPAQ?

         17             THE WITNESS:  OF COMPAQ.  THANK YOU.

         18   BY MR. BOIES:

         19   Q.  AND DID HE HOLD THAT POSITION IN 1996?

         20   A.  YES, I BELIEVE HE DID.

         21   Q.  OKAY.  AND MR. PEPPERMAN HAS ASKED ME TO MAKE CLEAR FOR

         22   THE RECORD, WHICH I THINK YOU WOULD AGREE WITH, THAT

         23   MR. DECKER WAS NOT HIMSELF INVOLVED IN THE DECISION TO

         24   REMOVE THE ICONS FROM THE WINDOWS DESKTOP, CORRECT?

         25   A.  YES.  I BELIEVE THAT IS CORRECT.
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          1   Q.  AND FOR THE CLARITY OF THE RECORD, LET ME JUST READ THE

          2   QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS WHICH ARE FROM PAGE 125.

          3             CAN WE PUT UP PAGE 125 FROM THE OCTOBER 14, 1998

          4   DEPOSITION?

          5   A.  MR. BOIES --

          6             THE COURT:  WHAT WE HAVE IS THE OCTOBER 17TH

          7   DEPOSITION.

          8             MR. BOIES:  YES, YOUR HONOR.  WHAT I AM READING

          9   FROM IS THE SECOND DEPOSITION, WHICH WE CAN HAND OUT.  I AM

         10   GOING TO THE PORTION THAT MR. PEPPERMAN ASKED ME TO READ,

         11   WHICH SIMPLY CONFIRMS WHAT THE WITNESS JUST SAID.

         12             THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.

         13             MR. BOIES:  BUT FOR COMPLETENESS OF THE RECORD --

         14   AND IT BEGINS AT LINE 19 --

         15             THE WITNESS:  MR. BOIES, WHAT DOCUMENT?

         16   BY MR. BOIES:

         17   Q.  THIS IS MR. DECKER'S DEPOSITION TAKEN OCTOBER 14, 1998.

         18   A.  YES.

         19             "QUESTION:  FIRST OF ALL --

         20   A.  WHICH PAGE?  EXCUSE ME, PLEASE.

         21   Q.  PAGE 125 AT THE BOTTOM, CONTINUING ONTO PAGE 126.

         22   A.  YES.

         23   Q.  AND I AM NOT SUGGESTING THIS IS IN ANY WAY DIFFERENT

         24   FROM WHAT YOU TESTIFIED TO.  I THINK IT IS EXACTLY THE SAME

         25   THING YOU TESTIFIED TO.  I AM READING IT BECAUSE THIS IS
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          1   WHAT MR. PEPPERMAN WANTED ME TO READ.  OKAY.  SO THIS IS NOT

          2   IN ANY SENSE DISAGREEING WITH WHAT YOU SAID.

          3   A.  I HAVEN'T SEEN THIS, SO I AM NOT SURE WHAT IT IS.

          4   Q.  I AM JUST GOING TO READ IT NOW, AND YOU CAN READ ALONG

          5   WITH ME.

          6   A.  GREAT.

          7   Q.  AND IF YOU HAVE GOT ANY COMMENT ON IT, YOU'RE FREE TO

          8   MAKE IT WHEN I GET FINISHED.

          9   A.  THANK YOU.

         10   Q.  "QUESTION:  FIRST OF ALL, JUST TO BE SURE I UNDERSTAND,

         11   WERE YOU INVOLVED AT ALL IN THE DECISION TO REMOVE THOSE

         12   ICONS FROM THE WINDOWS DESKTOP?

         13             "ANSWER:  NO, I WASN'T.

         14             "QUESTION:  WERE YOU INVOLVED IN ANY DISCUSSIONS

         15   LEADING UP TO THE REMOVAL OF THOSE ICONS FROM THE WINDOWS

         16   DESKTOP.

         17             "ANSWER:  NO, I WASN'T.

         18             "QUESTION:  WERE YOU INVOLVED IN ANY DISCUSSION

         19   WITH REPRESENTATIVES OF MICROSOFT ABOUT THE REMOVAL OF THE I

         20   AND MSN ICONS?

         21             "NO, I WASN'T."

         22             AND I TAKE IT THAT IS CONSISTENT WITH YOUR

         23   UNDERSTANDING, CORRECT, SIR?

         24   A.  YES.

         25   Q.  NOW, LET ME DIRECT YOUR ATTENTION FIRST TO MR. DECKER'S
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          1   DEPOSITION ON OCTOBER 17, 1997, PAGE 17 AND 18.  AND I'M --

          2   A.  YES.

          3   Q.  AND I'M GOING TO BEGIN AT THE BOTTOM OF PAGE 17 AT LINE

          4   21.

          5             "QUESTION:  WELL, AT SOME TIME DID COMPAQ REMOVE

          6   THE INTERNET EXPLORER FROM THE MACHINES THAT IT WAS

          7   SHIPPING?

          8             "ANSWER:  YES.

          9             "QUESTION:  CONSUMER MACHINES, I'M SORRY.

         10             "ANSWER:  THE ICONS.  THEY REMOVED THE ICONS.

         11             "QUESTION:  FROM THE USER'S PERSPECTIVE, WHAT IS

         12   THE DIFFERENCE BETWEEN TAKING THE ICON OFF AND TAKING THE

         13   CODE OFF?

         14             "ANSWER:  TAKING THE ICON OFF MEANS THAT THE

         15   CONSUMER WOULD HAVE TO BE A LITTLE MORE SAVVY AND

         16   KNOWLEDGEABLE AND ACTUALLY FIND THE APPLICATION BY GOING

         17   THROUGH SOME PROGRAMS AND FILE FOLDERS VERSUS HAVING AN ICON

         18   ON THE DESKTOP THAT CAN JUST BE POINT AND CLICK.

         19             "QUESTION:  WHY DID COMPAQ WANT TO REMOVE THE

         20   INTERNET EXPLORER ICON AT THAT TIME?

         21             "ANSWER:  AT THE TIME, WE HAD A RELATIONSHIP WITH

         22   NETSCAPE AND WE HAD BEEN SHIPPING THEIR PRODUCT FOR AWHILE.

         23   AND, THEREFORE, NETSCAPE WAS ACTUALLY THE BROWSER PARTNER

         24   AND WE WANTED TO GIVE THAT POSITION ON THE COMPAQ PRESARIO

         25   DESKTOP."
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          1             WHAT I WANT YOU TO PARTICULARLY FOCUS ON IS THAT

          2   LAST QUESTION AND ANSWER.

          3   A.  YES.

          4   Q.  IS THAT CONSISTENT WITH YOUR UNDERSTANDING OF WHAT

          5   COMPAQ WANTED IN 1996?

          6   A.  THAT IS NOT CONSISTENT WITH MY UNDERSTANDING OF COMPAQ'S

          7   STRATEGY OR THE DIRECTION THAT WE WERE ON AT THAT TIME.  I

          8   BELIEVE MR. DECKER WAS A BIT CONFUSED HERE.

          9   Q.  NOW, LET'S TAKE THE TWO PARTS OF WHAT MR. DECKER SAYS

         10   SEPARATELY.  IN MAY AND JUNE OF 1996, DID COMPAQ HAVE A

         11   RELATIONSHIP WITH NETSCAPE?

         12   A.  YES.

         13   Q.  AND WAS NETSCAPE WHAT YOU HAVE REFERRED TO AS A PARTNER

         14   OF COMPAQ?

         15   A.  YES.

         16   Q.  AND HAD COMPAQ BEEN SHIPPING THE NETSCAPE BROWSER FOR

         17   AWHILE?

         18   A.  YES.  I BELIEVE THAT TO BE TRUE.  WE HAD BEEN SHIPPING

         19   THE NETSCAPE BROWSER.

         20   Q.  OKAY.

         21   A.  THE ISSUE HERE WAS AOL AND THE AOL BROWSER.

         22   Q.  DIDN'T YOU TELL ME YESTERDAY THAT THE AOL BROWSER WAS

         23   THE NETSCAPE BROWSER?

         24   A.  THE AOL BROWSER IS A PROPRIETARY AOL BROWSER AT THAT

         25   TIME CALLED GNN.  WITHIN IT, IT HAS SOME NETSCAPE -- AT THAT
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          1   TIME -- TECHNOLOGY, BUT IT WAS NOT SPECIFICALLY THE NETSCAPE

          2   BROWSER.

          3   Q.  NETSCAPE'S BROWSER -- NOT THE NETSCAPE BROWSER INCLUDED

          4   WITH AOL, ACCORDING TO YOUR TESTIMONY -- BUT NETSCAPE'S

          5   BROWSER --

          6   A.  WELL, NOW LET ME CLARIFY THAT POINT BECAUSE IT IS A FINE

          7   POINT.  IT'S THE GNN BROWSER OF AOL.  IT'S NOT AN AOL

          8   NETSCAPE BROWSER.  IT WAS A PROPRIETARY BROWSER OF AOL'S

          9   THAT WITHIN IT HAD SOME NETSCAPE TECHNOLOGY.  BUT IT WAS NOT

         10   THE NETSCAPE NAVIGATOR BROWSER.

         11   Q.  LET ME BE SURE I UNDERSTAND WHAT YOU'RE SAYING.  ON THE

         12   PRESARIO DESKTOP --

         13   A.  YES.

         14   Q.  -- THAT MICROSOFT WAS UNHAPPY WITH, YOU HAD REMOVED TWO

         15   ICONS.  YOU HAD REMOVED THE --

         16   A.  EXCUSE ME.  I DID NOT SAY THAT MICROSOFT WAS UNHAPPY

         17   WITH THE PRESARIO DESKTOP.  IN MY TESTIMONY YESTERDAY, I

         18   TALKED ABOUT THE SERVER RELATIONSHIP ON INTERNET AND

         19   INTRANET WITH NETSCAPE.

         20   Q.  MR. ROSE, IT MIGHT HELP IF YOU LET ME FINISH THE

         21   QUESTION --

         22   A.  YES.

         23   Q.  -- BECAUSE I THINK IT IS ABSOLUTELY CLEAR THAT MICROSOFT

         24   WAS UNHAPPY WITH THE FACT THAT THE PRESARIO DESKTOP HAD HAD

         25   THE MSN ICON AND THE INTERNET EXPLORER ICON REMOVED FROM IT,
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          1   CORRECT?

          2   A.  NO.

          3   Q.  OKAY.

          4   A.  THEY WERE -- LET ME EXPLAIN.  THEY WERE UNHAPPY WITH THE

          5   FACT THAT WE DID NOT COMPLY WITH OUR AGREEMENT -- OUR

          6   CONTRACTUAL AGREEMENT TO DISPLAY THEM.  WE NEVER DISPLAYED

          7   AT THAT TIME THE INTERNET EXPLORER OR THE MSN ICON.  AND WE

          8   HAD CONTRACTUALLY AGREED TO THAT, GOING BACK TO AUGUST OF

          9   '95.

         10   Q.  LET ME TRY TO APPROACH IT THIS WAY BY GOING TO YOUR

         11   DIRECT TESTIMONY.  OKAY.  DO YOU HAVE YOUR DIRECT TESTIMONY

         12   UP THERE?

         13   A.  MY SUBMITTED DIRECT TESTIMONY?

         14   Q.  YES, SIR.

         15   A.  YES.

         16   Q.  LET ME BEGIN WITH PARAGRAPH 25.

         17   A.  YES.

         18   Q.  "I UNDERSTAND THAT, IN EARLY 1996, COMPAQ DID REMOVE, ON

         19   SOME CONSUMER PRODUCTS, THE INTERNET EXPLORER ICON (AS

         20   OPPOSED TO INTERNET EXPLORER SOFTWARE) FROM THE WINDOWS 95

         21   DEFAULT DESKTOP ON ITS PRESARIO LINE OF PERSONAL COMPUTERS."

         22   DO YOU SEE THAT?

         23   A.  YES.

         24   Q.  AND DO YOU STILL AGREE THAT THAT'S AN ACCURATE

         25   STATEMENT?
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          1   A.  YES, I DO.

          2   Q.  OKAY.

          3   A.  AND I JUST CLARIFIED THAT WITH THE POINT THAT WE NEVER

          4   PUT THEM UP THERE.  WE NEVER PUT THE ICONS ON THE PRESARIO

          5   WHEN WE SHIPPED IT.

          6   Q.  YES.  I UNDERSTAND THAT.

          7   A.  IT MAY BE SEMANTICS, BUT THAT'S --

          8   Q.  YOUR SEMANTICS.

          9   A.  YES, MY SEMANTICS.

         10   Q.  IN YOUR SWORN TESTIMONY.

         11   A.  YES, THAT'S CORRECT.

         12             THE COURT:  YOU SAID "REMOVE."

         13             THE WITNESS:  YES.  THAT'S CORRECT, YOUR HONOR.  I

         14   WAS JUST TRYING TO CLARIFY THAT POINT.

         15             THE COURT:  OKAY.

         16   BY MR. BOIES:

         17   Q.  NOW, MICROSOFT WAS UNHAPPY THAT YOU HAD, IN YOUR

         18   LANGUAGE HERE, "REMOVED" THE INTERNET EXPLORER ICON FROM THE

         19   PRESARIO DESKTOP, CORRECT?

         20   A.  THAT'S CORRECT.

         21   Q.  OKAY.  NOW, LET ME GO BACK TO MR. DECKER'S TESTIMONY AT

         22   THE BOTTOM OF THE PAGE 18, CONTINUING ON TO PAGE 19.

         23             "QUESTION:  HOW DID MICROSOFT RESPOND TO COMPAQ

         24   REMOVING THE INTERNET EXPLORER ICON FROM THE DESKTOP?

         25             "ANSWER:  WELL, WHEN THEY FOUND OUT ABOUT IT, THEY
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          1   SENT A LETTER TO US TELLING US THAT, YOU KNOW, THEY WOULD

          2   TERMINATE OUR AGREEMENT FOR DOING SO."

          3             IS THAT TESTIMONY CONSISTENT WITH YOUR

          4   UNDERSTANDING, SIR?

          5   A.  THAT IS CORRECT.

          6   Q.  OKAY.  NOW, LET ME ASK THAT YOU LOOK AT A DOCUMENT THAT

          7   HAS BEEN MARKED AS GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT 299.  THIS DOCUMENT IS

          8   IN EVIDENCE AND IS NOT UNDER SEAL.  THIS IS A DOCUMENT FROM

          9   LORI DAY DATED MAY 29, 1996 TO A LOT OF PEOPLE, INCLUDING

         10   MIKE HEIL, GARY STIMAC, DAVID CABELLO, STEVE FLANNIGAN, JIM

         11   KELLY AND OTHERS, CORRECT, SIR?

         12   A.  THAT'S CORRECT.

         13   Q.  I APOLOGIZE.  IT IS FROM CELESTE DUNN TO LORI DAY AND

         14   ALL THOSE OTHER PEOPLE.  AND I'D LIKE YOU TO TURN TO THE

         15   THIRD PAGE OF THE EXHIBIT, WHICH IS THE SECOND PAGE OF THE

         16   ATTACHED DOCUMENT.  AND I'M GOING TO WANT TO ASK YOU --

         17             THE COURT:  WHAT IS AN MOU?

         18             MR. BOIES:  I BELIEVE IT IS MEMORANDUM OF

         19   UNDERSTANDING.

         20             THE COURT:  OKAY.

         21   BY MR. BOIES:

         22   Q.  IS THAT CONSISTENT WITH YOUR UNDERSTANDING, MR. ROSE?

         23   A.  THAT IS CORRECT.

         24             THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.

         25   BY MR. BOIES:
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          1   Q.  AND IS IT YOUR UNDERSTANDING THAT, AT THE END OF MAY,

          2   1996, MICROSOFT AND COMPAQ WERE ENTERING INTO A MEMORANDUM

          3   OF UNDERSTANDING?

          4   A.  ON THE TOPIC OF INTERNET AND INTRANET, YES.

          5   Q.  LET ME ASK YOU TO LOOK AT DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 2264

          6   THAT'S ATTACHED TO YOUR DIRECT TESTIMONY.

          7   A.  YES.

          8   Q.  IS THIS THE MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING THAT IS BEING

          9   REFERRED TO?

         10   A.  NO.  I DON'T BELIEVE IT IS.

         11   Q.  THIS --

         12   A.  COULD I CLARIFY THAT?

         13   Q.  SURE.

         14   A.  I BELIEVE IN THIS FIRST DOCUMENT HERE, 299, THAT THE

         15   MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING IS A NEW ONE THAT WE'RE CREATING

         16   AT THAT TIME WITH MICROSOFT AROUND INTERNET AND INTRANET,

         17   WHICH IS SIMILAR TO WHAT I DESCRIBED WE DID WITH NETSCAPE IN

         18   FEBRUARY OF '96.

         19             SO IT'S A SERVER INTERNET-INTRANET SOLUTION KIND

         20   OF RELATIONSHIP.

         21   Q.  ALL RIGHT.  THE AGREEMENT THAT IS DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT

         22   2264 --

         23   A.  YES.

         24   Q.  -- WAS SIGNED IN JUNE OF 1996; IS THAT CORRECT?

         25   A.  DATED AUGUST 15TH, SIGNED HERE IN JUNE OF '96, THAT'S
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          1   CORRECT.

          2   Q.  AND JUST TO BE CLEAR, IT IS AS OF AUGUST 15TH OF 1995,

          3   AND SIGNED IN JUNE OF 1996, CORRECT?

          4   A.  THAT IS CORRECT.

          5   Q.  DO YOU HAVE DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 2267 IN FRONT OF YOU?

          6   A.  YES, I DO.

          7   Q.  IS THIS THE MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING THAT IS REFERRED

          8   TO IN CELESTE DUNN'S MAY 29, 1996 DOCUMENT?

          9   A.  I BELIEVE THIS NOT TO BE THE MOU THAT IS REFERRED TO IN

         10   HER DOCUMENT.

         11   Q.  SO THIS ALSO IS NOT THE MOU, CORRECT?

         12   A.  I BELIEVE THAT TO BE CORRECT.

         13   Q.  OKAY.  THIS AGREEMENT THAT IS DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 2267

         14   WAS SIGNED BY JIM ALLCHIN FOR MICROSOFT ON MAY 10, 1996 AND

         15   BY GARY STIMAC FOR COMPAQ MAY 13, 1996, CORRECT?

         16   A.  THIS IS ACTUALLY AN ADDENDUM TO THE FRONT LINE

         17   PARTNERSHIP THAT ADDRESSES THE INTERNET AND INTRANET.  SO IT

         18   IS SOMETHING THAT THE MOU ULTIMATELY MATURED TO.

         19   Q.  FIRST, THIS WAS SIGNED MAY 10TH AND MAY 13TH, 1996 BY

         20   MR. ALLCHIN AND MR. STIMAC RESPECTIVELY, CORRECT?

         21   A.  YES.

         22   Q.  OKAY.  AND WHAT YOU'RE SAYING IS THAT THIS DOCUMENT IS

         23   WHAT THE MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING EVOLVED INTO.  IS THAT

         24   YOUR TESTIMONY?

         25   A.  I BELIEVE THAT TO BE CORRECT.  THIS IS THE ADDENDUM TO
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          1   THE FRONT LINE PARTNERSHIP THAT REFLECTED THE

          2   INTERNET-INTRANET AGREEMENT WITH MICROSOFT.

          3   Q.  NOW, THIS AGREEMENT -- DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 2267 -- WAS

          4   SIGNED APPROXIMATELY TWO WEEKS BEFORE CELESTE DUNN'S E-MAIL,

          5   CORRECT?

          6   A.  YES.

          7   Q.  WAS THERE A MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING THAT WAS SIGNED

          8   SUBSEQUENT TO MAY 29, 1996?

          9   A.  COULD YOU REPEAT YOUR QUESTION?

         10   Q.  SURE.  THERE'S A REFERENCE -- AND MAYBE THE EASIEST WAY

         11   TO DO THAT IS THERE'S A REFERENCE IN CELESTE DUNN'S MAY 29,

         12   1996 E-MAIL TO A MOU OR MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING,

         13   CORRECT?

         14   A.  YES.

         15   Q.  WHEN WAS THAT MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING SIGNED?

         16   A.  I WOULD EXPECT -- I WOULD EXPECT SHE IS REFERRING TO

         17   THIS LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING CONTRACTUAL ADDENDUM TO THE

         18   FRONT LINE PARTNERSHIP.

         19   Q.  WHICH IS WHAT EXHIBIT?

         20   A.  EXHIBIT  DX 2267.

         21   Q.  OKAY.  THAT'S WHAT I MEANT TO ASK YOU BEFORE.  AND LET

         22   ME JUST BE SURE THE RECORD IS CLEAR.  EXHIBIT 2267, SIGNED

         23   MAY 10, 1996 BY MR. ALLCHIN AND MAY 13, 1996 BY MR. STIMAC

         24   IS WHAT YOU NOW BELIEVE IS THE MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING

         25   REFERRED TO BY CELESTE DUNN IN GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT 299,
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          1   CORRECT?

          2   A.  I BELIEVE THAT TO BE CORRECT.

          3   Q.  NOW, IN CELESTE DUNN'S MAY 29, 1996 MEMORANDUM, ON THE

          4   SECOND PAGE, SHE SAYS "IN REGARD TO BROWSERS" -- AT THE VERY

          5   TOP -- "OUR GOAL IS TO FEATURE THE BRAND LEADER NETSCAPE."

          6   DO YOU SEE THAT?

          7   A.  YES.

          8   Q.  AND IN THE NEXT PARAGRAPH, SHE SAYS, "BOTH NETSCAPE AND

          9   AOL HAVE AGREED TO PROVIDE END USER SUPPORT FOR THEIR

         10   PRODUCTS AND THE ONLINE INTERNET SERVICES."

         11   A.  YES.

         12   Q.  AND IT GOES ON TO SAY, "TRADITIONALLY COMPAQ HAS

         13   PROVIDED END USER SUPPORT FOR MICROSOFT PRODUCTS AND NOTHING

         14   IN THE MOU STATES DIFFERENTLY."

         15             DO YOU SEE THAT?

         16   A.  YES.

         17   Q.  FIRST, WERE YOU AWARE IN MAY OF 1996 THAT THE PERSONAL

         18   COMPUTER SIDE OF THE BUSINESS HAD A GOAL OF FEATURING

         19   NETSCAPE IN TERMS OF BROWSERS?

         20   A.  I WAS AWARE THEY WERE FEATURING AOL.

         21   Q.  YES.  AND IT TALKS ABOUT BOTH AOL AND NETSCAPE, AND I AM

         22   NOW ASKING ABOUT NETSCAPE.  AND WHAT I AM ASKING IS WHETHER

         23   YOU WERE AWARE IN MAY OF 1996 THAT ONE OF THE GOALS OF THE

         24   P.C. SIDE OF COMPAQ'S BUSINESS WAS TO FEATURE THE NETSCAPE

         25   BROWSER?
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          1   A.  I WASN'T AWARE THAT THAT WAS AN EXPLICIT GOAL.  AS I

          2   SAID EARLIER, I WAS AWARE THAT OUR WHOLE STRATEGY AND FOCUS

          3   WAS AROUND INTERNET SERVICES AND THAT WE WANTED TO FEATURE

          4   AOL.

          5   Q.  BUT YOU WERE NOT AWARE THAT, AS PART OF EMPHASIZING

          6   INTERNET SERVICES, THE CONSUMER SIDE OF COMPAQ'S BUSINESS

          7   WANTED TO FEATURE NETSCAPE'S BROWSER; IS THAT WHAT YOU'RE

          8   SAYING?

          9   A.  EXPLICITLY NETSCAPE'S BROWSER IS WHAT I'M SAYING, YES --

         10   THAT I WAS NOT AWARE THAT THAT WAS EXPLICIT.  BUT IT'S

         11   CONSISTENT WITH THE STRATEGY THAT WE'RE ON.  THE

         12   INCONSISTENCY WAS THE ELIMINATION OF MICROSOFT'S IE EXPLORER

         13   AND MSNET ICONS.

         14   Q.  SO WHAT YOU'RE SAYING IS THAT, ALTHOUGH YOU WERE NOT

         15   AWARE OF IT, THERE WAS NOTHING THAT WAS INCONSISTENT, IN

         16   YOUR VIEW, WITH THE PERSONAL COMPUTER SIDE OF COMPAQ'S

         17   BUSINESS HAVING A GOAL OF FEATURING THE BRAND LEADER

         18   NETSCAPE; IS THAT CORRECT?

         19   A.  THAT IS CORRECT.

         20   Q.  OKAY.  NOW, IN THE MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING DATED

         21   MAY 10, 1996 AND SIGNED MAY 10TH AND MAY 13TH, DID COMPAQ

         22   AGREE THAT, GOING FORWARD, COMPAQ WOULD SHIP THE NEW VERSION

         23   OF INTERNET EXPLORER AS THE DEFAULT BROWSER ON ALL COMPAQ

         24   DESKTOP AND SERVER PLATFORMS?

         25   A.  YES.  AND WE DO THAT TODAY.
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          1   Q.  AND YOU DO THAT TODAY?

          2   A.  YES.  WE FEATURE NETSCAPE AND WE ALLOW NETSCAPE TO BE

          3   THE DEFAULT BROWSER OR WE ALLOW IE TO BE THE DEFAULT

          4   BROWSER.  IT'S A CUSTOMER'S CHOICE.

          5   Q.  WAIT A MINUTE.  MR. ROSE, DO YOU SHIP TWO DEFAULT

          6   BROWSERS ON THE SAME P.C.?

          7   A.  NO, WE SHIP THE ICONS DISPLAYED ON THE P.C. AND THE

          8   CUSTOMER CAN CHOOSE WHETHER THEY WANT INTERNET OR WHETHER

          9   THEY -- WHETHER THEY WANT THE NETSCAPE NAVIGATOR OR THEY

         10   WANT THE IE EXPLORER INTERNET, AND THE CUSTOMER CAN CHOOSE.

         11   AT ANY POINT IN TIME, THE CUSTOMER CAN CHANGE HIS OR HER

         12   MIND, AND IT'S NO MORE THAN A CLICK.

         13   Q.  LET ME SEE IF I CAN TRY TO UNDERSTAND WHAT YOU'RE

         14   SAYING.  ON MAY 10, 1996, COMPAQ AGREED WITH MICROSOFT THAT

         15   COMPAQ WOULD MAKE INTERNET EXPLORER THE DEFAULT BROWSER ON

         16   ALL OF COMPAQ'S PERSONAL COMPUTERS, CORRECT, SIR?

         17   A.  THAT'S CORRECT.

         18   Q.  AND EVERY PERSONAL COMPUTER THAT IS SHIPPED BY COMPAQ

         19   HAS ONE AND ONLY ONE DEFAULT BROWSER SHIPPED WITH IT,

         20   CORRECT?

         21   A.  THAT IS CORRECT, BUT IT SHIPS WITH TWO BROWSERS.

         22   Q.  YOU SAY IT SHIPS WITH TWO BROWSERS AND I WANT TO COME TO

         23   THAT, BUT WHAT I'M TRYING TO DO IS FOCUS ON MY QUESTION,

         24   WHICH IS THE DEFAULT BROWSER --

         25   A.  YES.

                                                                              59

          1   Q.  -- BECAUSE THAT'S WHAT YOU HAVE IN THIS CONTRACT.

          2   A.  YES.

          3   Q.  AND IS IT THE CASE TODAY THAT MICROSOFT CONTINUES TO

          4   SHIP INTERNET EXPLORER AS ITS DEFAULT BROWSER ON ALL OF ITS

          5   PERSONAL COMPUTERS?

          6   A.  THE CASE IS COMPAQ, NOT MICROSOFT.

          7   Q.  YES.

          8   A.  COMPAQ.

          9   Q.  YES.  DOES COMPAQ TODAY SHIP THE MICROSOFT INTERNET

         10   EXPLORER AS THE DEFAULT BROWSER ON ALL OF COMPAQ'S PERSONAL

         11   COMPUTERS?

         12   A.  NOT 100 PERCENT.

         13   Q.  OKAY.

         14   A.  BECAUSE THERE ARE SOME FORM FACTORS, LIKE WORKSTATIONS,

         15   THAT THAT'S NOT CLEAR, BUT LET ME JUST CLARIFY IT.

         16   Q.  WELL, WAIT A MINUTE.

         17   A.  FOR THE PREDOMINANCE OF ALL OF THE DESKTOP AND PORTABLE

         18   DEVICES THAT SHIP WITH WINDOWS, THE DEFAULT BROWSER THAT WE

         19   PUT ON THERE IS INTERNET EXPLORER.

         20   Q.  I DON'T WANT TO GET HUNG UP IN ANOTHER SEMANTICS THING,

         21   BUT YESTERDAY YOU DISTINGUISHED BETWEEN WORKSTATIONS AND

         22   PERSONAL COMPUTERS, REMEMBER?

         23   A.  YES.

         24   Q.  OKAY.  I'M NOT NOW TALKING ABOUT WORKSTATIONS.  I'M

         25   TALKING ABOUT PERSONAL COMPUTERS.
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          1   A.  YES.

          2   Q.  NOW, DOES COMPAQ SHIP INTERNET EXPLORER AS THE DEFAULT

          3   BROWSER ON ALL OF ITS PERSONAL COMPUTERS TODAY?

          4   A.  YES.

          5   Q.  OKAY.  IS THIS A PROVISION OF A CONTRACT WITH MICROSOFT

          6   THAT IS IN EFFECT -- THAT IS, THAT COMPAQ HAS THE OBLIGATION

          7   TO DO THAT?

          8   A.  IT'S REFLECTED IN THE FRONT LINE PARTNERSHIP DOCUMENT

          9   HERE.

         10   Q.  AND THE FRONT LINE PARTNERSHIP DOCUMENT THAT YOU REFER

         11   TO IS A SIGNED CONTRACT, CORRECT?

         12   A.  THAT IS CORRECT.

         13   Q.  NOW, I WANT TO COME TO THE INCLUSION, TO THE EXTENT IT

         14   OCCURS, OF NETSCAPE'S BROWSER WITH COMPAQ'S MACHINES, AND

         15   LET ME BEGIN BY GOING BACK TO MR. DECKER'S DEPOSITION, THE

         16   OCTOBER 17, 1998 DEPOSITION.

         17             OCTOBER 17, 1998.  I'M GOING TO START ON PAGE -- I

         18   AM GOING TO START WITH OCTOBER 17TH.  IT SAYS 1998 ON IT.

         19   IS THAT WRONG?

         20             IT'S THE OCTOBER 17, 1997 DEPOSITION THAT THE

         21   COURT REPORTER HAS, FOR SOME REASON, MARKED OCTOBER 17, 1998

         22   ON IT.  I THINK IT'S JUST A TYPOGRAPHICAL ERROR.

         23             OKAY.  IT'S THE OCTOBER 17, 1997 DEPOSITION OF

         24   MR. DECKER.  DO YOU HAVE THAT, MR. ROSE?  IT'S WHAT WE WENT

         25   TO EARLIER.
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          1   A.  YES, I DO.

          2   Q.  LET ME DIRECT YOUR ATTENTION BEGINNING AT PAGE 15.  AND

          3   IT TALKS ABOUT, FOR CONTEXT, HOW COMPAQ HAD, IN THE PAST,

          4   BEEN SHIPPING NETSCAPE NAVIGATOR ON ITS CONSUMER P.C.'S AND

          5   HAD DONE SO FOR PROBABLY ABOUT A YEAR.  DO YOU SEE THAT?

          6   A.  YES.

          7   Q.  AND THEN AT LINE 9:

          8             "QUESTION:  SINCE THAT TIME, HAS COMPAQ CHANGED

          9   THE BROWSERS THAT IT PREINSTALLS ON ITS CONSUMER P.C. LINES?

         10             "ANSWER:  YES.  WE NO LONGER PREINSTALL NETSCAPE.

         11             "QUESTION:  WHY?

         12             "ANSWER:  BECAUSE WE -- WITH THE INCLUSION OF

         13   INTERNET EXPLORER FROM MICROSOFT, THAT CATEGORY IS ALREADY

         14   FILLED BECAUSE OF THE INCLUSION OF THAT PRODUCT AS PART OF

         15   THE OPERATING SYSTEM, AND THEN ALSO TO ACTUALLY LICENSE THE

         16   ADDITIONAL BROWSER THAT WOULD INVOLVE BOTH TIME BY COMPAQ TO

         17   PUT THAT PARTICULAR AGREEMENT IN PLACE, WE WOULD HAVE

         18   ANOTHER PRODUCT THAT WOULD TAKE UP REAL ESTATE ON OUR HARD

         19   DRIVE AND, YOU KNOW, THERE POTENTIALLY WOULD BE SOME

         20   ADDITIONAL LICENSING FEES, AND WE WOULD HAVE TO PAY FOR THAT

         21   TECHNOLOGY."

         22             FIRST --

         23             MR. PEPPERMAN:  YOUR HONOR, I'D ASK THAT MR. BOIES

         24   READ THE NEXT QUESTION AND ANSWER UNDER RULE 106.

         25             THE COURT:  I'M SORRY.
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          1             MR. BOIES:  I'M GOING TO GO ON ALL THE WAY THROUGH

          2   AND I'M JUST GOING TO ASK A FEW QUESTIONS ALONG THE WAY.

          3   I'M GOING TO GO ALL THE WAY THROUGH PAGE 16.

          4             THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.  GO AHEAD.

          5             MR. PEPPERMAN:  OBJECTION WITHDRAWN.

          6             MR. BOIES:  I'M GOING TO -- AND JUST SO THAT YOU

          7   KNOW, I'M GOING TO GO ALL THE WAY THROUGH LINE 6 ON PAGE 17.

          8             MR. PEPPERMAN:  ALL RIGHT.

          9   BY MR. BOIES:

         10   Q.  FIRST, IS THAT CONSISTENT WITH YOUR UNDERSTANDING THAT

         11   COMPAQ DECIDED NO LONGER TO PREINSTALL NETSCAPE'S NAVIGATOR

         12   FOR THE REASONS STATED HERE IN 1996?

         13   A.  NO.  THAT'S NOT MY UNDERSTANDING.

         14   Q.  WAS IT YOUR UNDERSTANDING THAT NETSCAPE BROWSER WAS NO

         15   LONGER PREINSTALLED -- THAT A DECISION HAD BEEN MADE NO

         16   LONGER TO PREINSTALL NETSCAPE'S BROWSER IN 1996?

         17   A.  NO.  I WAS NOT AWARE OF THAT.

         18   Q.  YOU WERE NOT AWARE OF THAT.  OKAY.  LET'S GO ON ON

         19   PAGE 16.

         20             "DOES COMPAQ CONTINUE TO SHIP NAVIGATOR ON SOME OF

         21   ITS PORTABLE LINES WHICH CURRENTLY INCLUDE WINDOWS 95 AS THE

         22   OPERATING SYSTEM?

         23             "ANSWER:  YES, WE DO.

         24             "QUESTION:  WHY IS NAVIGATOR CURRENTLY SHIPPED ON

         25   SOME OF THE PORTABLE LINES?
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          1             "ANSWER:  THE REASON FOR THAT IS THAT WE CONTINUE

          2   TO SHIP PRODUCT IN MIDSTREAM OF THEIR LIFECYCLE OR HAVE BEEN

          3   REVVED FOR ENGINEERING REASONS.  WE CHOSE NOT TO CHANGE THE

          4   IMAGE OF THE HARD DRIVE, SO THAT SOFTWARE REMAINED.

          5             "QUESTION:  WHAT DO YOU MEAN BY 'REVVED' WHEN YOU

          6   SAY 'REVVED'?

          7             "REVISION.  WHEN WE DO A REVISION OF A PRODUCT.

          8             "QUESTION:  WHEN THE PRODUCT IS REVVED GOING

          9   FORWARD, WILL COMPAQ BE SHIPPING NETSCAPE NAVIGATOR ON ITS

         10   PORTABLE LINE?

         11             "ANSWER:  I DON'T BELIEVE WE WILL SHIP THAT.

         12             "QUESTION:  WHY?

         13             "ANSWER:  BECAUSE, AGAIN, THE INTERNET EXPLORER

         14   PRODUCT WILL BE PART OF THE OPERATING SYSTEM THAT WE RECEIVE

         15   FROM MICROSOFT AND SO, THEREFORE, THAT CATEGORY WILL BE

         16   FILLED WITH INTERNET EXPLORER AND, YOU KNOW, THAT CATEGORY

         17   WILL BE TAKEN CARE OF.

         18             "WE REALLY WOULDN'T HAVE THE NECESSITY FOR A

         19   NETSCAPE PRODUCT."

         20             IS THAT CONSISTENT WITH YOUR UNDERSTANDING AS TO

         21   WHAT COMPAQ DECIDED AND WHY?

         22   A.  NO.

         23   Q.  IS THAT CONSISTENT WITH YOUR UNDERSTANDING OF WHAT

         24   COMPAQ DECIDED, LEAVING ASIDE FOR A MOMENT THE QUESTION OF

         25   WHY IT DECIDED IT?
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          1   A.  NO.  MY UNDERSTANDING WAS AT THAT TIME THE ISSUE WAS

          2   AOL, AND AOL DID NOT WANT US TO FEATURE ANY BROWSER IN

          3   THERE, WHETHER IT BE THE NETSCAPE NAVIGATOR OR THE INTERNET

          4   EXPLORER FROM MICROSOFT.  THAT THEY HAD A PROPRIETARY

          5   BROWSER CALLED GNN THAT THEY WANTED US TO FEATURE.  AND

          6   EVERYTHING ELSE WOULD BE RELEGATED TO A NON-ICON POSITION.

          7   Q.  LET ME TRY TO FOLLOW UP ON THAT.  AS YOU UNDERSTOOD IT,

          8   DID AOL OBJECT TO YOUR MAKING INTERNET EXPLORER THE DEFAULT

          9   BROWSER?

         10   A.  MY UNDERSTANDING IS AOL WANTED US TO FEATURE ONE BROWSER

         11   AND THAT WAS THEIR GNN.  SO WE WOULD FEATURE AOL AND GNN AND

         12   EVERYTHING ELSE WOULD BE RELEGATED AS UNFEATURED OR PUT

         13   ELSEWHERE IN THE SYSTEM, BUT NOT AT THE ICON LEVEL.

         14   Q.  MY QUESTION IS WHETHER AOL, AS YOU UNDERSTAND IT,

         15   OBJECTED TO COMPAQ MAKING INTERNET EXPLORER THE DEFAULT

         16   BROWSER ON COMPAQ'S P.C.'S.

         17   A.  I AM NOT AWARE IF THE SPECIFIC CONVERSATION OR OBJECTIVE

         18   WAS ON THE DEFAULT BROWSER.  IT WAS ON THEIR DESIRE TO HAVE

         19   US FEATURE THEIR OWN GNN BROWSER, ALONG WITH THEIR AOL

         20   SERVICE, AND ALL OTHER BROWSERS, REGARDLESS IF THEY WERE

         21   DEFAULT OR NOT, WOULD BE DEFEATURED.

         22   Q.  LET ME SEE IF I CAN CLARIFY THIS.  IN 1996 -- IN MAY OF

         23   1996, COMPAQ AGREED THAT YOU WOULD PUT THE INTERNET EXPLORER

         24   ICON ON YOUR DESKTOPS AND THAT YOU WOULD MAKE INTERNET

         25   EXPLORER THE DEFAULT BROWSER FOR YOUR P.C.'S, RIGHT?
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          1   A.  YES.

          2   Q.  WAS AOL SATISFIED WITH THAT OR DID THEY OBJECT TO THAT?

          3   A.  NO.  THEY OBJECTED TO THAT, AS WELL AS THE NETSCAPE

          4   NAVIGATOR BROWSER.  THEY OBJECTED TO BOTH.

          5   Q.  NOW, THEIR OBJECTION TO WHAT YOU WERE DOING WITH

          6   MICROSOFT DID NOT STOP YOU FROM DOING WHAT YOU WERE DOING

          7   WITH MICROSOFT, CORRECT, SIR?

          8   A.  THAT IS CORRECT.  NOR DID IT STOP US DOING WHAT WE WERE

          9   DOING WITH NETSCAPE.

         10   Q.  WELL, THEN I'VE GOT TO GO BACK TO MR. DECKER'S

         11   DEPOSITION AND TRY TO UNDERSTAND WHAT YOU'RE SAYING.

         12             IN 1996, DID COMPAQ STOP SHIPPING NETSCAPE

         13   NAVIGATOR WITH ITS P.C.'S?

         14   A.  I DON'T KNOW SPECIFICALLY BECAUSE THERE WERE SOME

         15   COMPATIBILITY ISSUES IN THAT TIMEFRAME WITH NETSCAPE

         16   NAVIGATOR IN OUR OVERALL SYSTEM.  SO WE WENT THROUGH AN

         17   ITERATIVE PROCESS WITH NETSCAPE ON GETTING THE COMPATIBILITY

         18   ISSUES RESOLVED.

         19             SO, AT THAT POINT IN TIME, THE NETSCAPE NAVIGATOR

         20   MAY HAVE BEEN ON, THEN OFF, THEN BACK ON.  BUT THE ISSUE WAS

         21   COMPATIBILITY.

         22   Q.  WHEN I ASKED YOU THE QUESTION BEFORE, YOU SAID THE ISSUE

         23   WAS AOL.  DO YOU REMEMBER THAT?

         24   A.  YOU ASKED ME A DIFFERENT QUESTION.  THE ISSUE OVERALL

         25   WAS AOL -- AOL'S DESIRE THAT WE ONLY FEATURE AOL AND GNN.
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          1             THE COURT:  AND THAT WAS PURSUANT TO THE AUGUST

          2   '95 AGREEMENT; IS THAT CORRECT?

          3             THE WITNESS:  I'M NOT SURE I UNDERSTAND YOUR

          4   HONOR'S QUESTION.

          5             THE COURT:  THE CONTRACT WITH AOL WAS DATED AUGUST

          6   OF '95.

          7             MR. BOIES:  AUGUST 23, 1995.

          8             THE COURT:  YES.

          9             THE WITNESS:  YES.  THAT WAS THE AOL AGREEMENT.

         10             THE COURT:  AND THAT'S THE ONE THAT YOU SAY

         11   COMMITTED YOU TO SHIP THEIR PROPRIETARY BROWSER; IS THAT

         12   CORRECT?

         13             THE WITNESS:  THAT'S CORRECT.  BUT, YOUR HONOR, AS

         14   I ALSO STATED, THAT WAS IN VIOLATION OF THE --

         15             THE COURT:  I KNOW THAT.

         16             THE WITNESS:  -- CONTRACTUAL AGREEMENT THAT WE HAD

         17   PUT IN PLACE WITH MICROSOFT, WHICH GOES BACK TO EARLIER IN

         18   AUGUST.

         19             THE COURT:  I AM JUST TRYING TO FIND THE SOURCE OF

         20   YOUR OBLIGATION OR THE OBLIGATION THAT AOL THOUGHT YOU HAD

         21   TO CARRY ITS PROPRIETARY BROWSER.  AND THAT WAS THE

         22   AUGUST 23 CONTRACT OF 1995?

         23             THE WITNESS:  YES.

         24             THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.

         25   BY MR. BOIES:
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          1   Q.  NOW, DID THERE COME A TIME, AFTER MAY OF 1996, WHEN

          2   COMPAQ STOPPED SHIPPING NETSCAPE'S BROWSER WITH COMPAQ'S

          3   PERSONAL COMPUTERS?

          4   A.  I'M NOT SURE OF THE SPECIFICS.  AS I SAID, AT THAT POINT

          5   IN TIME, WITH SOME MODELS WE STOPPED AND SOME MODELS WE DID

          6   NOT.

          7   Q.  OKAY.  SO IT IS YOUR TESTIMONY THAT WITH SOME MODELS,

          8   YOU CONTINUED TO SHIP NETSCAPE'S BROWSER WITH COMPAQ'S

          9   P.C.'S THROUGHOUT 1996; IS THAT YOUR TESTIMONY?

         10   A.  I BELIEVE THAT TO BE CORRECT, AND I ALSO BELIEVE, AS I

         11   SAID, THERE WERE COMPATIBILITY ISSUES WITH NETSCAPE'S

         12   BROWSERS, WHICH ALSO AFFECTED IN WHAT PRODUCTS AT WHAT TIME

         13   WE SHIPPED IT OR DID NOT SHIP.

         14   Q.  WERE THOSE COMPATIBILITY PROBLEMS SOLVED AT SOME POINT?

         15   A.  EVENTUALLY THEY WERE, TO THE POINT WHERE WE INCLUDE

         16   NETSCAPE NAVIGATOR TODAY.

         17   Q.  WHEN WERE THOSE COMPATIBILITY PROBLEMS SOLVED?

         18   A.  I DON'T KNOW THE SPECIFIC RELEASES OR TIMEFRAME, BUT

         19   OVER THE COURSE OF TIME POST-MAY OF '96, THEY WERE SOLVED.

         20   Q.  CAN YOU BE A LITTLE MORE SPECIFIC AS TO WHEN THEY WERE

         21   SOLVED?

         22   A.  NO, I WAS NOT CLOSE TO THAT, MR. BOIES, TO UNDERSTAND

         23   EXACTLY WHAT VERSIONS OF NAVIGATOR RESOLVED THE

         24   COMPATIBILITY ISSUES.

         25             THE COURT:  AND YOU'RE TELLING ME THAT YOU SHIP
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          1   THEM BOTH TODAY?

          2             THE WITNESS:  YES, WE DO, YOUR HONOR.  WE SHIP

          3   BOTH --

          4             THE COURT:  THERE ARE TWO BROWSERS ON THE

          5   COMPUTERS THAT YOU SHIP?

          6             THE WITNESS:  YES, THERE ARE, YOUR HONOR.  AND

          7   FROM MY OWN PERSONAL EXPERIENCE, YOU CAN -- THOUGH WE SET UP

          8   WITH THE DEFAULT BROWSER OF INTERNET EXPLORER, AS SOON AS

          9   THE CUSTOMER SETS UP, HE OR SHE HAS A CHOICE TO CHANGE THAT.

         10   YOU CLICK IT, AND FROM MY OWN EXPERIENCE, IT CHANGES IN FOUR

         11   SECONDS AND NETSCAPE BECOMES THE DEFAULT BROWSER.

         12             THE COURT:  OKAY.

         13   BY MR. BOIES:

         14   Q.  ON WINDOWS 98, SIR?

         15   A.  YES.

         16   Q.  YOU HAVE DONE THAT ON WINDOWS 98?

         17   A.  YES.

         18   Q.  AND, IN ALL CASES, IT WILL NOW LAUNCH THE INTERNET

         19   EXPLORER?  I MEAN, IT WILL NOW LAUNCH THE NETSCAPE BROWSER;

         20   IS THAT YOUR TESTIMONY?

         21   A.  MY TESTIMONY IS -- AND I DID THIS TO -- YOU KNOW, THIS

         22   WEEK TO VERIFY MY TESTIMONY.  I WENT AND MY LEGAL TEAM

         23   PURCHASED ONE OF THE NEW PRESARIOS FROM STAPLES RIGHT UP THE

         24   ROAD HERE, AND I WENT THROUGH THAT PROCESS MYSELF.  I

         25   CERTIFIED IT, SET IT UP, AND THEN I CHANGED THE INTERNET
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          1   EXPLORER.  I CLICKED AND CHOSE NETSCAPE AND IT MADE NETSCAPE

          2   MY DEFAULT BROWSER.

          3   Q.  MR. ROSE, MY QUESTION IS, WHEN YOU DID THAT, AFTER YOU

          4   HAD DONE THAT, DID YOUR WINDOWS 98 PRESARIO COMPUTER LAUNCH

          5   NETSCAPE AS THE BROWSER EVERY TIME A BROWSER WAS LAUNCHED?

          6   A.  YES.  EVERY TIME I USED IT THERE, IT LAUNCHED NETSCAPE.

          7   IT AT TIMES ASKED ME IF I WANTED TO CHANGE IT.  AND I CHOSE

          8   NOT TO; I KEPT IT AS NETSCAPE.  BUT I COULD HAVE CHANGED IT

          9   BACK TO INTERNET EXPLORER WITH THE CLICK OF THE MOUSE.

         10   Q.  SO IT'S YOUR UNDERSTANDING -- I JUST WANT TO GET YOUR

         11   UNDERSTANDING, SIR -- IT'S YOUR UNDERSTANDING THAT BY SIMPLY

         12   PERFORMING THE SIMPLE THING THAT YOU SAID YOU DID, YOU HAVE

         13   NOW CONVERTED THAT MACHINE TO A MACHINE THAT, WHENEVER IT

         14   LAUNCHES A BROWSER, IT WILL LAUNCH NETSCAPE'S NAVIGATOR

         15   INSTEAD OF IE, UNLESS YOU DECIDE TO CHANGE IT BACK?

         16   A.  RIGHT.  BUT I DID NOT TEST OUT EVERY SINGLE COMBINATION,

         17   MR. BOIES.  I SAID I USED IT -- MADE IT MY DEFAULT BROWSER,

         18   AND THEN I WENT INTO SOME OF THE SERVICES, KEEPING IT AS MY

         19   DEFAULT BROWSERS.  IT ASKED ME IF I WANTED TO CHANGE IT BACK

         20   AND I CHOSE "NO."

         21   Q.  I'M LEAVING ASIDE NOW THE QUESTION THAT IT KEEPS ASKING

         22   YOU WHETHER YOU WANT TO CHANGE IT BACK, OKAY?

         23   A.  YES.

         24   Q.  DO YOU HAVE AN UNDERSTANDING ONE WAY OR THE OTHER AS TO

         25   WHETHER WHAT YOU DID SUCCEEDED IN MAKING THE NETSCAPE
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          1   NAVIGATOR THE BROWSER THAT YOUR MACHINE WOULD LAUNCH UNDER

          2   ALL CIRCUMSTANCES?

          3   A.  THE PERCEPTION I HAD WHEN I DID THAT -- AS A CONSUMER, I

          4   FELT THAT I HAD CHANGED MY DEFAULT BROWSER TO NETSCAPE.

          5             THE COURT:  AND WHAT DID YOU DO?

          6             THE WITNESS:  I CLICKED ON IT, YOUR HONOR.

          7             THE COURT:  CLICKED ON WHAT?

          8             THE WITNESS:  WELL, WHEN IT CAME UP -- IT CAME UP

          9   WHEN I WENT INTO -- WHEN I WENT THROUGH THE REGISTRATION, IT

         10   AUTOMATICALLY SET UP IE AS THE DEFAULT BROWSER.  WHEN I WENT

         11   INTO --

         12             THE COURT:  YOU CLICKED ON SOMETHING.

         13             THE WITNESS:  WHAT I DID WAS I CLICKED ON -- WE

         14   WERE HIGHLIGHTING THERE "AOL" AS WELL AS "GTE" SERVICE.

         15             THE COURT:  GTE?

         16             THE WITNESS:  YES.

         17             THE COURT:  OKAY.  ALL RIGHT.

         18             THE WITNESS:  AND IT SAID, "WHAT DO YOU WANT AS

         19   YOUR BROWSER"?  AND I CLICKED ON -- I CHOSE NETSCAPE.  THEN

         20   IT SAID, "DO YOU WANT IT TO BE YOUR DEFAULT BROWSER"?  I

         21   SAID "YES."

         22             THE COURT:  DID YOU HAVE TO TYPE IT IN?

         23             THE WITNESS:  NO, I JUST CLICKED.  I NEVER TYPED,

         24   YOUR HONOR.

         25             THE COURT:  WHAT WERE YOU CLICKING --
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          1             THE WITNESS:  WITH THE MOUSE.

          2             THE COURT:  CLICKING ON?  I MEAN, WHERE WAS THE

          3   MOUSE POINTED AT THE TIME?

          4             THE WITNESS:  IT WAS POINTED AT --

          5             THE COURT:  WHERE WAS THE ARROW POINTED?

          6             THE WITNESS:  WELL, WHAT IT DID, YOUR HONOR, IT

          7   PUT UP A LITTLE BLOCK AND IT SAID WHAT, YOU KNOW, "WHAT DO

          8   YOU WANT AS YOUR BROWSER"?

          9             THE COURT:  OKAY.

         10             THE WITNESS:  THEN IT GAVE A CHOICE.  AND I CHOSE

         11   NETSCAPE.  AND I CLICKED ON IT AND IT MADE NETSCAPE MY

         12   BROWSER.  AND THEN IT CAME BACK WHEN I WENT INTO SOME OF THE

         13   OTHER SERVICES, YOUR HONOR, AND ASKED ME, "DO YOU WANT

         14   NETSCAPE OR DO YOU WANT EXPLORER"?  AND I KEPT NETSCAPE.  I

         15   COULD HAVE EASILY CLICKED AND GONE BACK TO INTERNET

         16   EXPLORER.

         17             THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.

         18             MAYBE WE OUGHT TO GO TO LUNCH RIGHT NOW.  WHAT DO

         19   YOU THINK?

         20             MR. BOIES:  SOUNDS GOOD TO ME, YOUR HONOR.

         21             THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.  2:00.

         22             (WHEREUPON, THE ABOVE-ENTITLED MATTER WAS RECESSED

         23   FOR LUNCH AT 12:17 P.M.)

         24

         25
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